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Documents Available for 
Inspection

A full text of annual report, containing the signature of the head of the 
Company and company seal
Financial statements, containing signatures of the head of the Company, 
the person in charge of the accounting function and the person in charge 
of the accounting department and company seal
Original copy of the auditor’s report sealed by accounting firm and signed 
and sealed by certified public accountants
Original copies of all documents and announcements of the Company 
publicly disclosed in the newspapers designated by CSRC for information 
disclosure purpose and on the website of SSE during the Reporting Period
Annual reports released through HKEx

IMPORTANT NOTICE
I. The board of directors (the “Board”), the board of supervisors, the directors, the supervisors 

and members of senior management of the Company guarantee the authenticity, accuracy and 
completeness of the contents of the annual report, in which there are no false representations, 
misleading statements contained or material omissions, and assume the several and joint 
responsibilities as well.

II. All directors of the Company attended the Board meeting.
III. Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP has issued a standard and unqualified audit report for the Company.
IV. Xie Zhixiong, the head of the Company, Zou An, the Chief Financial Officer, and Lei Xiaodan, the 

Chief Accountant, have declared that they guarantee the truthfulness, accuracy and completeness 
of the financial statements in the annual report.

V. The profit distribution proposal or proposal to transfer capital reserve to share capital for the 
Reporting Period as passed by the Board meeting
According to the auditing by Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP, the realized net loss attributable to the 
parent company for 2022 amounted to RMB1,038 million, and the unappropriated profit by parent 
company as of the end of 2022 amounted to RMB-7.651 billion. As the parent company recorded 
a negative unappropriated profit as at the end of 2022, the Board suggested not to make profit 
distribution or transfer capital reserve to share capital in 2022 pursuant to Article 250 of the Articles 
of Association.

VI. Risk warning in respect of forward-looking statements
✓  Applicable  Not applicable
The forward-looking statements set out in this annual report of the Company such as operating 
plans, future plans and development strategies involve uncertainties and do not constitute the 
Company’s substantial commitment to investors. Investors are advised to be aware of investment 
risks and make prudent investments.

VII. Is there any non-operational fund occupancy by the controlling shareholder or its related party?
No

VIII. Is there any provision of external guarantee by the Company in violation of the stipulated decision 
making procedure?
No

IX. Whether more than half of the directors cannot guarantee the authenticity, accuracy and 
completeness of the annual report disclosed by the Company
No

X. Major Risk Warning
Nil

XI. Others
 Applicable ✓  Not applicable

Contents



Section I Definitions

2 2022 Annual Report

I. DEFINITIONS

Unless the context otherwise requires, the following expressions have the following meanings in this 
report:

Definitions of common terms

CSRC China Securities Regulatory Commission

SSE Shanghai Stock Exchange

HKEx The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

China Baowu, Baowu Group China Baowu Steel Group Corporation Limited

Strategic Emerging Fund Chongqing Strategic Emerging Equity Investment Fund 
Partnership (Limited Partnership)

Sichuan Desheng, Desheng Group Sichuan Desheng Group Vanadium & Titanium Co., Ltd.

Changshou Iron & Steel, controlling 
shareholder

Chongqing Changshou Iron & Steel Company Limited

Company, Chongqing Iron & Steel Chongqing Iron & Steel Company Limited

Group Chongqing Iron & Steel Company Limited and i ts 
subsidiaries

General Meeting the general meeting of Chongqing Iron & Steel Company 
Limited

Board of directors the board of di rectors of Chongqing I ron & Steel 
Company Limited

Board of supervisors the board of supervisors of Chongqing Iron & Steel 
Company Limited

Companies Law the Companies Law of the People’s Republic of China

Securities Law the Securities Law of the People’s Republic of China

Articles of Association Art icles of Associat ion of Chongqing Iron & Steel 
Company Limited

Reporting Period From 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022

RMB, RMB’000, RMB0’000, RMB00’000’000 RMB yuan, RMB thousand yuan, RMB ten thousand 
yuan, RMB hundred million yuan
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I. COMPANY INFORMATION

The Company’s Chinese name Chongqing Iron & Steel Company Limited

Abbreviation of Chinese name 重慶鋼鐵

The Company’s English name Chongqing Iron & Steel Company Limited

Abbreviation of English name CISC

Legal representative Xie Zhixiong

II. CONTACT INFORMATION

Secretary to the Board Securities affairs representative

Name Zou An Peng Guoju

Correspondence 
address

No. 2 Jiangnan Avenue, 
Jiangnan Street, 
Changshou District, 
Chongqing

No. 2 Jiangnan Avenue, 
Jiangnan Street, 
Changshou District, 
Chongqing

Tel 86ngshou District, 
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Section II Company Profile and Major Financial Indicators (Continued)

IV. INFORMATION DISCLOSURE AND PLACE FOR INSPECTION

Names and websites of  
media for annual report 
disclosure

China Securities Journal (https://www.cs.com.cn)
Shanghai Securities News (https://www.cnstock.com)
Securities Times (http://www.stcn.com)
Securities Daily (http://www.zqrb.cn)

Websites of stock  
exchanges for annual  
report disclosure

http://www.sse.com.cn (SSE)
https://sc.hkex.com.hk (HKEx)

Place for inspection of 
annual reports

Secretariat of the Board of the Company

V. BASIC INFORMATION ABOUT THE SHARE OF THE COMPANY

Basic information about the share of the Company

Stock type
Relevant Exchange that  
stock listed on Stock abbreviation Stock code

Stock abbreviation 
before change

A Share Shanghai Stock Exchange Chongqing Iron & Steel 601005 N/A

H Share The Stock Exchange of  
Hong Kong Limited

Chongqing Iron & Steel 01053 N/A

VI. OTHER RELATED INFORMATION

Accounting firm engaged by 
the Company (domestic)

Name Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP

Office address 17/F, Ernst & Young Tower, Oriental Plaza, 1 East 
Chang’an Avenue, Beijing

Name of 
accountants 
signing-off the 
report

Ai Wei (艾維) and Wang Dan (王丹)
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Section II Company Profile and Major Financial Indicators (Continued)

VII. KEY ACCOUNTING DATE AND FINANCIAL INDICATORS FOR THE 
LAST THREE YEARS

i. Key accounting data

Unit: RMB’000 Currency: RMB

Key accounting data 2022 2021

Increase/
decrease 

from last year 2020
(%)

Operating income 36,561,531 39,849,418 -8.25 24,489,935
Operating revenue net of business 

revenue not related to principal 
business and income lacking 
commercial substance 36,273,788 37,466,956 -3.18 24,349,157

Net profit attributable to 
shareholders of listed company -1,019,409 2,274,395 -144.82 638,479

Net profit attributable to 
shareholders of listed company, 
netting non-recurring gains and 
losses -1,086,273 2,453,197 -144.28 491,082

Net cash flow from operating 
activities 1,470,087 5,621,433 -73.85 1,337,765     

At the end  
of 2022

At the end  
of 2021

Increase/
decrease 

from last year
At the end  

of 2020
(%)

Net assets attributable to 
shareholders of listed company 21,341,918 22,375,211 -4.62 20,038,467

Total assets 39,364,800 42,995,956 -8.45 39,949,856     
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2022 2021

Revenue 36,619,144,893.87 39,871,114,603.48
Less: Cost of sales 36,669,817,001.21 36,199,393,322.61

Taxes and surcharges 135,387,209.21 152,251,265.60
Distribution and selling expenses 74,204,262.56 81,143,070.80
General and administrative expenses 402,541,220.85 474,043,283.98
Research and development costs 21,736,831.31 11,802,669.84
Finance expenses 352,739,893.72 354,751,519.65
Including: Interest expenses 291,139,887.16 468,908,824.10

Interest income 58,721,783.30 112,900,043.77
Add：Other income 54,955,686.52 14,885,759.52

Investment income 32,670,179.29 12,865,211.44
Including: Sh are of profits and losses of joint 

ventures and associates 8,586,343.64 8,132,826.55
Impairment losses on assets 9,529,661.39 (19,036,690.83)
Impairment losses on credit (243,548,875.27) (348,552,145.83)
Gain/(Loss) on disposal of items of property, plant 

and equipment 1,675,134.36 (4,734,013.82)    

Operating profit/(loss) (1,181,999,738.70) 2,253,157,591.48
Add: Non-operating income 2,447,963.21 149,481,788.78
Less: Non-operating expenses 28,593,755.95 263,648,426.01    

Total profit/(loss) (1,208,145,531.44) 2,138,990,954.25
Less: Income tax expenses/(credit) (170,457,155.77) (33,595,160.77)    

Net Profit/(Loss) (1,037,688,375.67) 2,172,586,115.02
Including: Net profit/(loss) from continuing operations (1,037,688,375.67) 2,172,586,115.02    

Other comprehensive income/(loss) after tax (2,664,805.29) –

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability 1,585,194.71 –
Changes in fair value of equity investments at fair value 

through other comprehensive income (4,250,000.00) –    

Total comprehensive income (1,040,353,180.96) 2,172,586,115.02    

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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2022
  

 Share capital
Capital 

reserves

Less: 
treasury 

shares

Other 
comprehensive 

income
Special 

reserves
Surplus 

reserves
Unappropriated 

losses

Total 
shareholders’ 

equity

I. Closing balances of the 
preceding year and opening 
balances of the current 
year 8,918,602,267.00 19,313,089,864.55 – – 13,365,206.21 577,012,986.42 (6,613,166,393.46) 22,208,903,930.72         

II. Changes in the current year
(I) T otal comprehensive 

income – – – (2,664,805.29) – – (1,037,688,375.67) (1,040,353,180.96)
(II) Special reserve

1. A mount 
established 
during the 
year – – – – 50,374,773.41 – – 50,374,773.41

2. A mount utilized 
during the 
year – – – – (63,739,979.62) – – (63,739,979.62)         

III. Closing balance for the year 8,918,602,267.00 19,313,089,864.55 – (2,664,805.29) – 577,012,986.42 (7,650,854,769.13) 21,155,185,543.55         

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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Statement of Changes in Equity of the Parent Company (Continued)

2021
  

 Share capital
Capital 

reserves

Less: 
treasury 

shares

Other 
comprehensive 

income
Special 

reserves
Surplus 

reserves
Unappropriated 

losses

Total 
shareholders’ 

equity

I Closing balances of the 
preceding year and opening 
balances of the current year 8,918,602,267.00 19,313,089,864.55 65,939,636.53 – 19,398,461.42 577,012,986.42 (8,785,752,508.48) 19,976,411,434.38         

II. Changes in the current year
(I) T otal comprehensive 

income – – – – – – 2,172,586,115.02 2,172,586,115.02
(II) sh areholders’ 

contribution and 
decrease in share 
capital

1 A mount 
decreased 
during the year – – (65,939,636.53) – – – – 65,939,636.53

(III) Special reserve
1. A mount 

established 
during the year – – – – 26,400,000.00 – – 26,400,000.00

2. A mount utilized 
during the year – – – – (32,433,255.21) – – (32,433,255.21)         

III. Closing balance for the year 8,918,602,267.00 19,313,089,864.55 – – 13,365,206.21 577,012,986.42 (6,613,166,393.46) 22,208,903,930.72         

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)



For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Unit: RMB)

252 2022 Annual Report

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(CONTINUED)

10 Other equity instrument investments (Continued)

2021

Accumulated 
changes in fair 

value of other 
comprehensive 

income Fair value

Dividend income for the  
current year

Reasons for 
designating 
these investments 
at fair value 
through other 
comprehensive 
income (“FVTOCI”)

Equity 
instruments 

derecognized

Equity 
instruments that 

are still held

Xiamen Shipbuilding 
Industry Co., Ltd  
(廈門船舶重工股份
有限公司)

– 5,000,000.00 – – Intended to hold 
in long-term and 
earn investment 
income      

11. Property, plant and equipment

2022 2021

Property, plant and equipment 26,280,993,465.29 21,887,752,884.43
Property, plant and equipment to be disposed of 786,980.39 3,909,444.57   

26,281,780,445.68 21,891,662,329.00   
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(CONTINUED)

11. Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

2022

Plants and 
buildings

Machineries 
and other 

equipment
Transportation 

vehicles– Total

Cost
Opening balance 13,661,603,453.09 14,553,898,832.55 13,932,556.56 28,229,434,842.20
Purchases – 25,267,425.38 4,055,738.05 29,323,163.43
Transfers from construction 

in progress 45,910,639.20 5,698,575,931.19 – 5,744,486,570.39
Disposals or retirements – (2,869,626.27) (1,098,499.40) (3,968,125.67)
Transfer into property, plant 

and equipment to be 
disposed of (59,479,546.11) (107,260,539.61) – (166,740,085.72)     

Closing balance 13,648,034,546.18 20,167,612,023.24 16,889,795.21 33,832,536,364.63     

Accumulated depreciation
Opening balance 2,934,547,058.26 3,401,579,080.59 5,555,818.92 6,341,681,957.77
Provision 270,963,601.17 997,542,791.66 1,723,623.66 1,270,230,016.49
Disposals or retirements – (1,186,530.06) (1,073,194.42) (2,259,724.48)
Transfer into property, plant 

and equipment to be 
disposed of (19,205,676.34) (38,903,674.10) – (58,109,350.44)    

Closing balance 3,186,304,983.09 4,359,031,668.09 6,206,248.16 7,551,542,899.34     

Provision for impairment
Opening balance – – – –
Provision 40,273,869.77 68,356,865.51 – 108,630,735.28
Disposals or retirements – – – –
Transfer into property, plant 

and equipment to be 
disposed of (Note) (40,273,869.77) (68,356,865.51) – (108,630,735.28)    

Closing balance – – – –     

Carrying amount
At end of year 10,461,729,563.09 15,808,580,355.15 10,683,547.05 26,280,993,465.29    

At beginning of year 10,727,056,394.83 11,152,319,751.96 8,376,737.64 21,887,752,884.43     
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(CONTINUED)

11. Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

2021

Plants and 
buildings

Machineries 
and other 

equipment
Transportation 

vehicles– Total

Cost
Opening balance 13,632,364,525.02 8,592,665,403.00 10,807,402.00 22,235,837,330.02
Purchases – 3,436,109,436.60 3,985,350.69 3,440,094,787.29
Transfers from construction 

in progress 1,358,709.44 2,527,682,387.58 – 2,529,041,097.02
Disposals or retirements – 369,763,726.00 – 369,763,726.00

Transfer into property, 
plant and equipment to 
be disposed of 214,770,969.79 39,728,806.15 155,936.07 254,655,712.01

(174,952,100.61) – – (174,952,100.61)
(11,938,650.55) (412,050,926.78) (1,016,132.20) (425,005,709.53)     

Closing balance 13,661,603,453.09 14,553,898,832.55 13,932,556.56 28,229,434,842.20     

Accumulated depreciation
Opening balance 2,634,355,509.00 2,990,536,402.00 5,310,035.00 5,630,201,946.00
Provision 329,834,484.28 573,321,864.99 1,231,432.06 904,387,781.33
Disposals or retirements (27,015,981.05) – – (27,015,981.05)
Transfer into property, plant 

and equipment to be 
disposed of (2,626,953.97) (162,279,186.40) (985,648.14) (165,891,788.51)     

Closing balance 2,934,547,058.26 3,401,579,080.59 5,555,818.92 6,341,681,957.77     

Provision for impairment
Opening balance – – – –
Provision 9,311,696.58 249,771,740.38 30,484.06 259,113,921.02
Disposals or retirements – – – –
Transfer into property, plant 

and equipment to be 
disposed of (9,311,696.58) (249,771,740.38) (30,484.06) (259,113,921.02)     

Closing balance – – – –     

Carrying amount
At end of year 10,727,056,394.83 11,152,319,751.96 8,376,737.64 21,887,752,884.43     

At beginning of year 10,998,009,016.02 5,602,129,001.00 5,497,367.00 16,605,635,384.02     
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(CONTINUED)

11. Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Note:  According to the future production and operation plan of the Group, there are some properties, 
plants and equipment to be updated and replaced, whose provision for impairment is 
RMB108,630,735.28 in total.

PPE leased out under an operating lease are as follows:

2022 2021

Buildings 9,641,964.40 7,112,601.13   

As at 31 December 2022, PPE of which certificates of ownership have not been obtained are as 
follows:

Carrying 
amount

Reason for lacking 
certificates of ownership

Workshop in Changshou district 959,143,578.26 Application documents 
reviewing   

For details of PPE with ownership restricted, please refer to Note V.57.

Property, plant and equipment to be disposed of:

2022 2021

Machineries and other equipment 786,980.39 3,909,444.57   

12. Construction in progress

2022 2021

Construction in progress 894,154,698.17 4,174,368,877.56   
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(CONTINUED)

12. Construction in progress (Continued)

2022 2021

Book value
Provision for 

impairment
Carrying 

amount Book value
Provision for 

impairment Carrying amount

Upgrading of rolling mill – – – 1,191,222,417.60 – 1,191,222,417.60
High efficiency utilization of 

surplus gas and steam 
cascade utilization project – – – 383,940,194.09 – 383,940,194.09

Improvement of continuous 
caster – – – 349,375,901.33 – 349,375,901.33

Newly built 50000m3/h oxygen 
generator 373,694,383.33 – 373,694,383.33 321,807,258.84 – 321,807,258.84

Iron plant No.1, No.2, No.3 
sintering ring cooler 
environmental protection and 
energy saving renovation 22,400,000.00 – 22,400,000.00 – – –

Sintering machine upgrade and 
transformation and waste heat 
power generation project – – – 262,280,950.15 – 262,280,950.15

Upgrading of the safety and 
efficiency of the first series’ 
smelting area in steelmaking 
plant – – – 181,762,197.34 – 181,762,197.34

Upgrading and reconstruction of 
information system – – – 8,136,514.30 – 8,136,514.30

Reconstruction from section 
steel into double high rods – – – 134,945,663.39 – 134,945,663.39

No 2&3 Sintering flue gas 
desulfurization upgrading 
project – – – 130,387,718.46 – 130,387,718.46

Construction of 1#-6# coke oven 
flue gas desulfurization and 
denigration system – – – 108,597,740.29 – 108,597,740.29

Upgrading of blast furnace blast 
system – – – 91,192,954.81 – 91,192,954.81

Waste water treatment and 
utilization project – – – 81,899,820.10 – 81,899,820.10
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(CONTINUED)

12. Construction in progress (Continued)

The movements of important construction in progress in 2022 are as follows:

Budget Opening balance Increase
Transferred to 

Fixed assets
Other 

decrease
Closing 
balance

Sources of 
funds

Contribution 
in budget

Accumulated 
amount of 

interest 
capitalization–

其中：本年度

利息資本化

金額

本年度利息資

本化借款利率

RMB‘0,000 (%)

Newly built 50000m3/h 
oxygen generator

45,000 321,807,258.84 51,887,124.49 – – 373,694,383.33 self-owned 
funds

83% – – –

Upgrading and 
transformation 
project of raw 
material terminal 
equipment 
for logistics 
transportation

70,701 78,889,493.01 143,843,315.88 (97,602,887.86) – 125,129,921.03 self-owned 
funds

54% – – –

New series of primary 
steel slag treatment 
in steel mill

16,783 50,948,633.01 67,562,493.53 – – 118,511,126.54 self-owned 
funds

71% – – –

Upgrading of hot 
rolling thin coil 
production line in 
rolling mill

39,935 29,474,221.38 85,830,628.19 – – 115,304,849.57 self-owned 
funds

29% – – –

Newly built the second 
railroad product 
shipping depot

15,687 29,399,462.23 130,707.54 – – 29,530,169.77 self-owned 
funds

19% – – –

Iron plant No.1, No.2, 
No.3 sintering 
ring cooler 
environmental 
protection and 
energy saving 
renovation

6,988 – 22,400,000.00 – – 22,400,000.00 self-owned 
funds

32% – – –

Fine desulfurization of 
coke oven gas

7,443 – 14,885,706.79 – – 14,885,706.79 self-owned 
funds

20% – – –
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Budget Opening balance Increase
Transferred to 

Fixed assets
Other 

decrease
Closing 
balance

Sources of 
funds

Contribution 
in budget

Accumulated 
amount of 

interest 
capitalization–

其中：本年度

利息資本化

金額

本年度利息資

本化借款利率

RMB‘0,000 (%)

Sintering machine 
upgrade and 
transformation and 
waste heat power 
generation project

35,233 262,280,950.15 51,501,919.06 (313,782,869.21) – – self-owned 
funds

100% – – –

Upgrading of rolling 
mill

183,755 1,191,222,417.60 90,193,980.12 (1,281,416,397.72) – – self-owned 
funds

100% – – –

High efficiency 
utilization of surplus 
gas and steam 
cascade utilization 
project

88,577 383,940,194.09 462,312,731.76 (846,252,925.85) – – self-owned 
funds 
Borrowings

100% 5,416,739.18 5,416,739.18 2.21%

Improvement of 
continuous caster

77,334 349,375,901.33 220,330,048.90 (569,705,950.23) – – self-owned 
funds

92% – – –

Upgrading of 
wastewater 
treatment system 
and environmental 
protection

16,795 19,541,950.72 17,283,567.73 (36,825,518.45) – – self-owned 
funds

70% – – –

Upgrading of coking 
process

8,042 20,426,397.80 353,777.59 (20,780,175.39) – – self-owned 
funds

68% – – –

            
        
Subtotal 2,737,306,880.16 1,228,516,001.58 (3,166,366,724.71) – 799,456,157.03 5,416,739.18 5,416,739.18            

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(CONTINUED)

12. Construction in progress (Continued)

The movements of important construction in progress in 2022 are as follows: (Continued)
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(CONTINUED)

12. Construction in progress (Continued)

The movements of important construction in progress in 2022 are as follows: (Continued)

Budget Opening balance Increase
Transferred to 

Fixed assets
Other 

decrease
Closing 
balance

Sources of 
funds

Contribution 
in budget

Accumulated 
amount of 

interest 
capitalization–

其中：本年度

利息資本化

金額

本年度利息資

本化借款利率

RMB‘0,000 (%)

Upgrading of the 
safety and efficiency 
of the first series’ 
smelting area in 
steelmaking plant

25,475 181,762,197.34 9,069,185.27 (190,831,382.61) – – self-owned 
funds

75% – – –

Upgrading and 
reconstruction of 
information system

21,348 8,136,514.30 10,331,481.48 (18,467,995.78) – – self-owned 
funds

88% – – –

Reconstruction from 
section steel into 
double high rods

80,517 134,945,663.39 71,701,628.98 (206,647,292.37) – – self-owned 
funds

85% – – –

No 2&3 Sintering flue 
gas desulfurization 
upgrading project

20,000 130,387,718.46 55,048,713.63 (185,436,432.09) – – self-owned 
funds

93% – – –

Construction of 1#-6# 
coke oven flue gas 
desulfurization and 
denigration system

20,950 108,597,740.29 100,899,711.70 (209,497,451.99) – – self-owned 
funds

100% – – –

Upgrading of blast 
furnace blast 
system

15,166 91,192,954.81 15,906,798.41 (107,099,753.22) – – self-owned 
funds

95% – – –

Waste water treatment 
and utilization 
project

22,701 81,899,820.10 102,781,050.66 (184,680,870.76) – – self-owned 
funds

81% – – –

Upgrading of blast 
furnace process

77,579 72,566,691.84 45,091,343.94 (117,658,035.78) – – self-owned 
funds

77% – – –

Upgrading of wharves 
and berths

23,484 39,040,245.08 25,329,947.30 (61,586,466.72) (2,783,725.66) – self-owned 
funds

27% – – –
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Budget Opening balance Increase
Transferred to 

Fixed assets
Other 

decrease
Closing 
balance

Sources of 
funds

Contribution 
in budget

Accumulated 
amount of 

interest 
capitalization–

其中：本年度

利息資本化

金額

本年度利息資

本化借款利率

RMB‘0,000 (%)

No 1 Sintering flue 
gas desulfurization 
upgrading project

18,000 50,961,695.44 75,849,313.57 (126,811,009.01) – – self-owned 
funds

70% – – –

Water supply and 
drainage network 
renovation project

6,291 25,373,674.95 32,598,617.31 (57,972,292.26) – – self-owned 
funds

92% – – –

Others 512,197,081.40 694,795,403.00 (1,111,430,863.09) (863,080.17) 94,698,541.14 self-owned 
funds

– – – –

            
        
Subtotal 1,437,061,997.40 1,239,403,195.25 (2,578,119,845.68) (3,646,805.83) 94,698,541.14 – –            

Total 4,174,368,877.56 2,467,919,196.83 (5,744,486,570.39) (3,646,805.83) 894,154,698.17 5,416,739.18 5,416,739.18            

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(CONTINUED)

12. Construction in progress (Continued)

The movements of important construction in progress in 2022 are as follows: (Continued)



For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Unit: RMB)

263Chongqing Iron & Steel Company Limited 

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(CONTINUED)

12. Construction in progress (Continued)

The movements of important construction in progress in 2021 are as follows:

Budget Opening balance Increase
Transferred to 

Fixed assets

Transferred to 
long-term prepaid 

expenses Other decrease Closing balance
Sources of 
funds

工程投入

佔預算比例

RMB‘0,000 (%)

Reconstruction from section 
steel into double high rods

80,517 467,057,690.30 144,650,895.08 (476,762,921.99) – – 134,945,663.39 self-owned 
funds

76%

Upgrading of rolling mill 182,574 597,108,699.81 1,150,243,910.86 (527,446,355.05) – (28,683,838.02) 1,191,222,417.60 self-owned 
funds

96%

Upgrading and 
transformation project 
of raw material terminal 
equipment for logistics 
transportation

70,701 189,081,512.10 44,341,864.52 (154,533,883.61) – – 78,889,493.01 self-owned 
funds

33%

Sintering machine upgrade 
and transformation 
and waste heat power 
generation project

32,489 249,345,450.28 24,446,840.84 – (11,511,340.97) – 262,280,950.15 self-owned 
funds

93%

Upgrading of blast furnace 
process

77,579 246,666,471.72 53,326,203.37 (129,407,658.57) (98,018,324.68) – 72,566,691.84 self-owned 
funds

72%

Improvement of continuous 
caster

77,334 127,388,602.68 318,927,182.62 (96,939,883.97) – – 349,375,901.33 self-owned 
funds

64%

High efficiency utilization 
of surplus gas and steam 
cascade utilization project

81,100 73,687,746.54 349,765,961.87 (39,513,514.32) – – 383,940,194.09 self-owned 
funds

52%

Newly built 50000m3/h 
oxygen generator

45,000 38,832,829.91 282,974,428.93 – – – 321,807,258.84 self-owned 
funds

72%
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Budget Opening balance Increase
Transferred to 

Fixed assets

Transferred to 
long-term prepaid 

expenses Other decrease Closing balance
Sources of 
funds

工程投入

佔預算比例

RMB‘0,000 (%)

Construction of 1#-6# 
coke oven flue gas 
desulfurization and 
denigration system

16,500 – 108,597,740.29 – – – 108,597,740.29 self-owned 
funds

66%

Water supply and drainage 
network renovation project

6,291 1,184,252.59 25,374,618.35 – (1,185,195.99) – 25,373,674.95 self-owned 
funds

42%

Waste water treatment and 
utilization project

22,701 – 81,899,820.10 – – – 81,899,820.10 self-owned 
funds

36%

Upgrading of wharves and 
berths

23,484 17,927,522.43 21,112,722.65 – – – 39,040,245.08 self-owned 
funds

17%

          
        

Subtotal 2,008,280,778.36 2,605,662,189.48 (1,424,604,217.51) (110,714,861.64) (28,683,838.02) 3,049,940,050.67          

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(CONTINUED)

12. Construction in progress (Continued)

The movements of important construction in progress in 2021 are as follows: (Continued)
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(CONTINUED)

12. Construction in progress (Continued)

The movements of important construction in progress in 2021 are as follows: (Continued)

Budget Opening balance Increase
Transferred to 

Fixed assets

Transferred to 
long-term prepaid 

expenses Other decrease
Closing 
balance

Sources of 
funds

工程投入

佔預算比例

RMB‘0,000 (%)

Upgrading of blast furnace 
blast system

15,166 82,745,889.73 45,994,578.02 (37,547,512.94) – – 91,192,954.81 self-owned 
funds

85%

No 2&3 Sintering flue gas 
desulfurization upgrading 
project

20,000 – 130,387,718.46 – – – 130,387,718.46 self-owned 
funds

65%

Upgrading and 
reconstruction of 
information system

21,348 11,994,833.20 166,442,444.29 (170,300,763.19) – – 8,136,514.30 self-owned 
funds

84%

Transformation of pellet 
desulfurization and 
denitrification

10,000 3,777,822.64 – – – (3,777,822.64) – self-owned 
funds

–

No 1 Sintering flue gas 
desulfurization upgrading 
project

18,000 – 50,961,695.44 – – – 50,961,695.44 self-owned 
funds

28%

Upgrading of wastewater 
treatment system and 
environmental protection

16,795 83,057,261.94 17,607,718.74 (81,123,029.96) – – 19,541,950.72 self-owned 
funds

60%

Upgrading of coking 
process

8,042 37,345,165.61 4,497,993.21 (21,416,761.02) – – 20,426,397.80 self-owned 
funds

68%

Upgrading of the safety 
and efficiency of the first 
series’ smelting area in 
steelmaking plant

25,475 – 181,762,197.34 – – – 181,762,197.34 self-owned 
funds

71%

Transformation of pellet 
desulfurization and 
denitrification

39,935 – 29,474,221.38 – – – 29,474,221.38 self-owned 
funds

7%

Others 617,463,434.42 770,843,093.72 (794,048,812.40) (1,083,279.56) (629,259.54) 592,545,176.64 self-owned 
funds          

        
Subtotal 836,384,407.54 1,397,971,660.60 (1,104,436,879.51) (1,083,279.56) (4,407,082.18) 1,124,428,826.89          

Total 2,844,665,185.90 4,003,633,850.08 (2,529,041,097.02) (111,798,141.20) (33,090,920.20) 4,174,368,877.56          
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(CONTINUED)

13. Right-of-use assets (Continued)

2021

Plants and 
buildings

Machineries 
and other 

equipment Total

Cost
Opening balance 16,483,288.71 4,100,324,683.99 4,116,807,972.70
Decrease
Transferred to PPE – (3,447,313,500.00)(3,447,313,500.00)    

Closing balance 16,483,288.71 653,011,183.99 669,494,472.70    

Accumulated depreciation
Opening balance 531,718.97 21,064,876.91 21,596,595.88
Provision 3,190,314.08 270,391,383.55 273,581,697.63
Transferred to PPE – (144,002,122.10) (144,002,122.10)    

Closing balance 3,722,033.05 147,454,138.36 151,176,171.41    

Provision for impairment
Opening and closing balance – – –    

Carrying amount
At end of year 12,761,255.66 505,557,045.63 518,318,301.29    

At beginning of year 15,951,569.74 4,079,259,807.08 4,095,211,376.82    
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(CONTINUED)

14. Intangible assets

2022

Land use right

Patent and 
non-patent 
technology Software Total

Cost
Opening balance 2,981,411,961.83 16,500,297.78 – 2,997,912,259.61
Purchases 197,653,728.40 – 2,355,443.38 200,009,171.78     

Closing balance 3,179,065,690.23 16,500,297.78 2,355,443.38 3,197,921,431.39     

Accumulated amortization
Opening balance 606,189,261.43 6,841,268.29 – 613,030,529.72

Provision 65,576,072.32 4,829,268.29 117,772.20 70,523,112.81     

Closing balance 671,765,333.75 11,670,536.58 117,772.20 683,553,642.53     

Provision for impairment
Opening and closing balance – – – –     

Carrying amount
At end of year 2,507,300,356.48 4,829,761.20 2,237,671.18 2,514,367,788.86     

At beginning of year 2,375,222,700.40 9,659,029.49 – 2,384,881,729.89     
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(CONTINUED)

14. Intangible assets (Continued)

2021

Land use right

Patent and 
non-patent 
technology Total

Cost
Opening balance 2,921,829,552.23 16,500,297.78 2,938,329,850.01
Purchases 40,492,123.00 – 40,492,123.00
Business combination not involving  

entities under common control 19,090,286.60 – 19,090,286.60    

Closing balance 2,981,411,961.83 16,500,297.78 2,997,912,259.61    

Accumulated amortization
Opening balance 541,725,000.28 2,012,000.00 543,737,000.28

Provision 64,464,261.15 4,829,268.29 69,293,529.44    

Closing balance 606,189,261.43 6,841,268.29 613,030,529.72    

Provision for impairment
Opening and closing balance – – –    

Carrying amount
At end of year 2,375,222,700.40 9,659,029.49 2,384,881,729.89    

At beginning of year 2,380,104,551.95 14,488,297.78 2,394,592,849.73    

Intangible assets of which certificates of title have not been obtained as at 31 December 2022 
are as follows:

Carrying 
amount

Reason for 
lack of certificate

Land use right without certificate of use 148,416,993.60 Processing by  
 government   

For details of intangible assets with ownership restricted, please refer to Note V.57.
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(CONTINUED)

15. Goodwill

2022

Opening 
balance

Increase 
Business 

combination 
not involving 

entities under 
common control

Decrease 
Disposals

Closing 
balance

Goodwill
Chongqing Iron & Steel Energy 295,407,414.62 – – 295,407,414.62
Xingang Changlong 32,647,355.72 – – 32,647,355.72     

Less: Provision for impairment (a)
Chongqing Iron & Steel Energy – – – –
Xingang Changlong – – – –     

Total 328,054,770.34 – – 328,054,770.34     

2021

Opening 
balance

Increase 
Business 

combination 
not involving 

entities under 
common control

Decrease 
Disposals

Closing 
balance

Goodwill
Chongqing Iron & Steel Energy 295,407,414.62 – – 295,407,414.62
Xingang Changlong – 32,647,355.72 – 32,647,355.72     

Less: Provision for impairment (a)
Chongqing Iron & Steel Energy – – – –
Xingang Changlong – – – –     

Total 295,407,414.62 32,647,355.72 – 328,054,770.34     
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(CONTINUED)

15. Goodwill (Continued)

(a) impairment

The goodwill allocated to the asset group of the Group is summarized as follows 
according to the operating segment:

31 December 
2022

31 December 
2021

Electric power processing group 295,407,414.62 295,407,414.62
Terminal asset group 32,647,355.72 32,647,355.72   

328,054,770.34 328,054,770.34   

Goodwill arising from business combinations has been allocated to the following asset 
groups or portfolio of asset groups for the impairment test:

Electric power processing group：

The goodwill of the electric power processing group is formed when purchasing 
Chongqing Iron & Steel Energy. The original book value was RMB295,407,000 on 31 
December 2022. The recoverable amount is determined by the present value of the 
estimated future cash flow and the cash flow forecast based on the five-year financial 
budget approved by the management. The cash flow over the five-year period is 
calculated using the estimated growth rate described below.

Terminal asset group:

The goodwil l of the terminal asset group is formed when purchasing Xingang 
Changlong. The original book value was RMB32,647,355.72 on 31 December 2022. The 
recoverable amount is determined by the present value of the estimated future cash 
flow and the cash flow forecast based on the five-year financial budget approved by the 
management. The cash flow over the five-year period is calculated using the estimated 
growth rate described below.
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(CONTINUED)

15. Goodwill (Continued)

(a) impairment (Continued)

The main assumptions for using the discounted future cash flow method:

Electric power 
processing group Terminal asset group

31 December 
2022

31 December 
2021

31 December 
2022

31 December 
2021

Sales growth rate 
during the forecast 
period 0% 0% 0% 0%

Sustainable growth rate 0% 0% 0% 0%

Discount Rate 12.23% 12.34% 11.79% 12.40%     

The management determined the budgeted gross profit margin and weighted average 
growth rate based on historical experience and forecasts of market development, and 
applied a pre-tax interest rate that can reflect the specific risks of the relevant asset 
group as the discount rate. The above assumptions are used to analyze the recoverable 
amount of the electric power processing asset group and Terminal asset group.

16. Long-term prepaid expenses

2022

Opening balance Increase Amortisation Other decrease Closing balance

Leasehold improvement 271,413.33 – (33,926.88) – 237,486.45      
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(CONTINUED)

16. Long-term prepaid expenses (Continued)

2021

Opening balance Increase Amortisation Other decrease Closing balance

Leasehold improvement 299,730,299.83 111,798,141.31 (41,493,301.81) (369,763,726.00) 271,413.33      

In 2021, the Company purchased the pre-iron making assets which were leased from 
Changshou Iron and Steel, and transferred the leasehold improvement during the lease period 
of related assets to PPE. Refer to Note V.11.

17. Deferred tax assets/liabilities

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities before offsetting:

2022 2021

Deductible 
temporary 

differences
Deferred 

tax assets

Deductible 
temporary 

differences
Deferred 

tax assets

Deferred tax assets
Deductible losses 1,369,644,252.14 205,446,638.51 140,505,100.00 21,075,765.00
Provision for impairment  

of assets 305,948,402.22 45,892,260.32 536,469,906.00 80,470,485.90
Post-employment and 

termination benefits 173,963,739.66 26,094,560.95 192,967,337.75 28,945,101.27
Deferred income 79,742,929.39 11,961,439.41 56,902,584.00 8,535,387.60
ECLs 3,827,273.25 574,090.99 23,607,894.08 3,541,184.11
Carbon emission quota gap 

implementation cost 92,895,736.39 13,934,360.46 – –
Reservoir migration support 

fund 38,528,095.69 5,779,214.35 – –
Rural network loan 

repayment 117,044,256.38 17,556,638.46 – –
Changes in fair value of 

other equity instrument 
investments 5,000,000.00 750,000.00 – –     

2,186,594,685.12 327,989,203.45 950,452,821.83 142,567,923.88     
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(CONTINUED)

17. Deferred tax assets/liabilities (Continued)

2022 2021

Deductible 
temporary 

differences
Deferred 

tax assets

Deductible 
temporary 

differences
Deferred 

tax assets

Deferred income tax liabilities
Fair value adjustments 

arising from business 
combinations not involving 
entities under common 
control 42,870,217.58 6,430,532.64 45,188,728.87 6,778,309.33     

Particulars of deferred tax assets unrecognized are presented as follows:

2022 2021

Deductible temporary differences – 359,507,722.95   

18. Other non-current assets

2022 2021

Prepaid for construction 4,131,818.97 67,233,743.61
Leasing risk fund – 39,719,973.57
Prepaid for land-transferring fees – 35,054,912.00   

4,131,818.97 142,008,629.18   
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(CONTINUED)

19. Short-term borrowings

2022 2021

Guarantee and mortgage loan – 850,802,777.79
Credit loan 1,106,441,170.84 1,778,931,039.73   

1,106,441,170.84 2,629,733,817.52   

As of 31 December 2022, the Group mortgaged land use rights with a carrying amount of 
RMB783,824,000 and buildings with a carrying amount of RMB783,824,472.71 to obtain 
mortgage loans of RMB850,000,000 from the bank.

As of 31 December 2022, the annual interest rate for the above borrowings was 2.30%-2.69% 
(31 December 2021: 3.30%-3.83%).

As at 31 December 2022, none of the short-term borrowings overdue (31 December 2021: Nil).

20. Notes payable

2022 2021

Bank acceptance bills 609,367,940.00 1,261,138,336.43   

As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, the age of notes payable of the Group was 
all within 6 months and none of the notes payable overdue. As at 31 December 2022, the 
Group’s notes payable was issued with a pledge of notes receivable of RMB100,119,944.03 
(2021: RMB317,202,000, a pledge of notes receivable).
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(CONTINUED)

21 Accounts payable

Trade payables are interest-free and normally settled within four months.

2022 2021

Within 1 year 3,090,079,597.30 4,541,426,471.67
1 to 2 years 15,697,245.36 18,801,339.58
2–3 years 3,589,706.30 4,868,696.59
Over 3 years 6,600,079.26 2,889,000.00   

3,115,966,628.22 4,567,985,507.84   

As at 31 December 2022, accounts payable aged over 1 year amounted to RMB25,887,030.92 
(31 December 2021: RMB26,559,036.17), mainly due to payment for goods and services, and 
these amounts are still in the process of settlement.

22. Contract liabilities

2022 2021

Sales payment in advance 2,645,569,472.47 2,185,095,400.45   

As at 31 December 2022, VAT of advances of RMB343,924,031.42 are disclosed as other 
current liabilities (31 December 2021: RMB284,735,634.39)
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23. Employee benefits payable

2022

Opening 
balance Increase Decrease Closing balance

Short-term employee benefits 64,826,505.59 1,226,631,221.30 1,212,852,701.41 78,605,025.48
Post-employment benefits (defined 

contribution plan) 27,000.00 226,806,746.55 226,833,746.55 –
Termination benefits 47,990,000.00 86,704,566.81 68,394,282.23 66,300,284.58     

112,843,505.59 1,540,142,534.66 1,508,080,730.19 144,905,310.06     

2021

Opening 
balance Increase Decrease Closing balance

Short-term employee benefits 230,841,710.73 1,144,214,507.07 1,310,229,712.21 64,826,505.59
Post-employment benefits (defined 

contribution plan) 27,000.00 118,929,155.84 118,929,155.84 27,000.00

Termination benefits 53,100,000.00 51,350,000.00 56,460,000.00 47,990,000.00     

283,968,710.73 1,314,493,662.91 1,485,618,868.05 112,843,505.59     
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(CONTINUED)

23. Employee benefits payable (Continued)

Short-term employee benefits are as follows:

2022

Opening balance Increase Decrease Closing balance

Salaries, bonuses, allowances and 
subsidies 19,938,063.68 919,447,646.61 919,439,955.62 19,945,754.67

Staff welfare 4,167.00 68,077,152.37 63,218,258.72 4,863,060.65
Social security contributions – 107,245,190.68 107,217,207.40 27,983.28
Including: Medical insurance – 79,422,479.45 79,395,026.59 27,452.86

Work injury insurance – 15,192,694.46 15,192,694.46 –
Other social security 

contributions – 12,630,016.77 12,629,486.35 530.42
Housing funds – 98,491,312.00 98,491,312.00 –
Labor union funds and employee 

education funds 44,770,756.33 33,369,919.64 24,372,449.09 53,768,226.88
Other short-term benefits 113,518.58 – 113,518.58 –     

64,826,505.59 1,226,631,221.30 1,212,852,701.41 78,605,025.48     

2021

Opening balance Increase Decrease Closing balance

Salaries, bonuses, allowances and 
subsidies 23,127,498.29 840,119,657.34 843,309,091.95 19,938,063.68

Staff welfare – 69,381,697.94 69,377,530.94 4,167.00
Social security contributions – 83,466,637.93 83,466,637.93 –
Including: M edical insurance 

premiums – 72,178,163.05 72,178,163.05 –
Work injury insurance 

premium – 11,288,474.88 11,288,474.88 –
Other social security 

contributions – – – –

Housing funds – 87,748,826.00 87,748,826.00 –
Labor union funds and employee 

education funds 41,484,708.00 30,542,372.81 27,256,324.48 44,770,756.33
Incentive fund 166,229,504.44 31,424,592.45 197,654,096.89 –
Other short-term benefits – 1,530,722.60 1,417,204.02 113,518.58     

230,841,710.73 1,144,214,507.07 1,310,229,712.21 64,826,505.59     
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(CONTINUED)

23. Employee benefits payable (Continued)

Details of the defined contribution plan are as follows:

2022

Opening balance Increase Decrease Closing balance

Basic pension insurance 27,000.00 146,833,288.68 146,860,288.68 –
Unemployment insurance premium – 4,585,728.87 4,585,728.87 –
Enterprise annuities – 75,387,729.00 75,387,729.00 –     

27,000.00 226,806,746.55 226,833,746.55 –     

2021

Opening balance Increase Decrease Closing balance

Basic pension insurance 27,000.00 115,319,997.51 115,319,997.51 27,000.00
Unemployment insurance premium – 3,609,158.33 3,609,158.33 –
Enterprise annuities – – – –     

27,000.00 118,929,155.84 118,929,155.84 27,000.00     
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(CONTINUED)

24. Taxes payable

2022 2021

Value-added tax (VAT) 2,991,873.69 923,450.31
Environmental protection tax 11,153,956.22 10,500,000.00
Stamp tax 6,317,964.15 5,024,402.74
Others 2,510,558.69 295,680.00   

22,974,352.75 16,743,533.05   

25 Other payables

2022 2021

Other payables 2,720,896,934.96 2,770,508,515.09   

2022 2021

Project payment payable 2,282,843,320.26 888,498,319.80
Guarantee deposits 142,635,716.70 152,613,442.20
Rural network loan repayment 117,044,256.38 158,338,335.04
Carbon emission 92,895,736.39 129,610,278.42
Large and medium-sized reservoir resettlement  

support fund 38,528,095.69 51,377,877.67
Collected amount for another in disposal of  

leased assets 37,391,944.68 37,391,944.68
Reserve funds for the reorganization – 400,000.00
Amount due to acquisition of leased assets – 1,339,361,617.18
Others 9,557,864.86 12,916,700.10   

2,720,896,934.96 2,770,508,515.09   
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26. Current portion of non-current liabilities

2022 2021

Long-term borrowings due within 1 year (Note V.31) 1,122,874,552.12 179,390,416.76
Bonds payable due within 1 year (Note V.31) 519,866,226.35 537,957,216.34
Long-term payables due within 1 year (Note V.30) 579,961,111.96 741,390,828.96
Lease liabilities due within 1 year (Note V.29) 129,782,225.56 123,896,646.50   

2,352,484,115.99 1,582,635,108.56   

27. Long-term borrowings

2022 2021

Credit loan 3,271,948,975.05 800,749,166.76
Pledge loan 335,344,305.56 450,581,250.00
Mortgage and guaranteed loan 267,526,371.51 720,860,000.00
Less: Long-term borrowings due within 1 year  

(Note V.27) 1,122,874,552.12 179,390,416.76   

2,751,945,100.00 1,792,800,000.00   

As at 31 December 2022, the annual interest rate of the above long-term borrowings was 
2.40%-3.7% (31 December 2021: 3.60%-4.65%).

As at 31 December 2022, none of the long-term borrowings overdue (31 December 2021: Nil).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group pledged 100% equity interest in Chongqing Iron & Steel 
Energy to obtain pledged loans of RMB335,000,000.00 from the bank (31 December 2021: 
RMB450,000,000).

As of 31 December 2022, the Group mortgaged land use rights with a carrying amount of 
RMB289,098,468.82 and plants and buildings with a carrying amount of RMB94,398,773.70 to 
obtain mortgage loans of RMB7267,526,371.51 from the bank (31 December 2021, the Group 
mortgaged machineries with a carrying amount of RMB3,425,422,000 to obtain mortgage 
loans of RMB720,860,000 from the bank).
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(CONTINUED)

27. Long-term borrowings (Continued)

Maturity analysis of long-term borrowings is as follows:

2022 2021

Spot or within 1 year 1,122,874,552.12 179,390,416.76
1 to 2 years 335,000,000.00 737,800,000.00
2 to 5 years 2,416,945,100.00 1,055,000,000.00   

3,874,819,652.12 1,972,190,416.76   

28. Bonds payable

2022s 2021

Short-term financing bonds 519,866,226.35 1,036,390,920.12
Less: Bonds payable due within 1 year (Note V.26) 519,866,226.35 537,957,216.34   

– 498,433,703.78   

As at 31 December 2022, the balances of bonds payable were as follows:

Name Par value Issue date Term Issuance amount

At beginning 

of year 

Balance

Issued in the 

current year

Interest accrued 

for the 

current year

Amortisation 

of discount/

premium

Less：due 

within 1 year

Closing 

balance

Medium-term bills 

(20重庆钢铁 

MTN001B 100.00 3/19/2020 3 years 500,000,000.00 498,433,703.78 – 20,168,630.13 1,263,892.44 519,866,226.35 –           
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28. Bonds payable (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the balances of bonds payable were as follows:

Name Par value Issue date Term Issuance amount

At beginning 

of year 

Balance

Issued in the 

current year

Interest accrued 

for the 

current year

Amortisation 

of discount/

premium

Less：due 

within 1 year

Closing 

balance

Medium-term bills 

(20重庆钢铁

MTN001A) 100.00 3/19/2020 3 years 500,000,000.00 498,131,300.07 – 18,242,191.78 1,415,094.37 517,788,586.22 –

Medium-term bills 

(20重庆钢铁

MTN001B) 100.00 3/19/2020 3 years 500,000,000.00 497,018,609.45 – 20,168,630.12 1,415,094.33 20,168,630.12 498,433,703.78           

Total 1,000,000,000.00 995,149,909.52 – 38,410,821.90 2,830,188.70 537,957,216.34 498,433,703.78           

Analysis on due date of bonds payable is as follows:

2022 2021

Within 1 year 519,866,226.35 537,957,216.34
2–3 years – 498,433,703.78   

519,866,226.35 1,036,390,920.12   

According to the China Association of Banking Market Exchanges China Municipal Association 
Note [2020] MTN106, the Company issued the first phase of 2020 medium-term notes on 
March 19, 2020, totaling RMB1 billion, including RMB500 million of medium-term notes with 
a of maturity 2 year and 1 year payback period, with a coupon rate of 4.64% and RMB500 
million of medium-term notes with a three-year maturity and a coupon rate of 5.13%.
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29. Lease liabilities

2022 2021

Opening balance 532,031,697.09 4,097,623,173.20
Interest 22,121,052.58 126,679,086.17
Payment 146,017,699.08 262,871,110.44
Decrease for purchase assets – 3,429,399,451.84   

408,135,050.59 532,031,697.09   

Less: Current portion of lease liabilities 129,782,225.56 123,896,646.50   

Closing balance 278,352,825.03 408,135,050.59   

Analysis on due date of lease liabilities are as follows:

2022 2021

Within 1 year 129,782,225.56 123,896,646.50
1 to 2 years 135,947,393.55 129,782,225.56
2 to 5 years– 142,405,431.48 278,352,825.03   

Total 408,135,050.59 532,031,697.09   
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(CONTINUED)

30. Long-term payables

2022 2021

Long-term payables 2,310,638,571.68 3,042,690,184.41
Due within 1 year ((Note V.30) 579,961,111.96 741,390,828.96   

Closing balance 1,730,677,459.72 2,301,299,355.45   

Long-term payables

2022 2021

Leaseback 1,730,677,459.72 2,301,299,355.45   

As at 31 December 2022, the annual interest rate of the above long-term payables was 4.00%-
5.46% (31 December 2021: 4.00%-5.46%).

As at 31 December 2022, none of the long-term payables overdue (31 December 2021: Nil).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group and the leasing company carried out the leaseback 
business and financed RMB2,310,638,571.68. The Group used machinery and equipment with 
a book value of RMB3,111,476,353.37 as the subject matter and the lease term is 3–5 years 
(31 December 2021: leaseback business balance RMB3,042,690,184.41 with book value of 
machinery and equipment RMB4,004,098,325.21).

Maturity analysis of long-term payables is as follows:

2022 2021

Spot or within 1 year 579,961,111.96 741,390,828.96
1 to 2 years 676,520,539.04 570,621,895.73
2 to 5 years– 1,054,156,920.68 1,730,677,459.72   

Total 2,310,638,571.68 3,042,690,184.41   
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31. Long-term employee benefits payable

2022

Opening balance Accrued
Less：Due 

within 1 year Closing balance

Termination benefits 97,816,625.22 85,364,892.65 86,263,197.08 96,918,320.79
Net liabilities of the defined  

benefit plan 47,160,712.53 (35,974,208.51) 441,369.73 10,745,134.29     

144,977,337.75 49,390,684.14 86,704,566.81 107,663,455.08     

2021

Opening balance Accrued
Less：Due 

within 1 year Closing balance

Termination benefits 137,076,510.22 11,580,115.00 50,840,000.00 97,816,625.22
Net liabilities of the defined  

benefit plan 42,480,000.00 5,190,712.53 510,000.00 47,160,712.53     

179,556,510.22 16,770,827.53 51,350,000.00 144,977,337.75     

Termination benefits

In order to optimize human resources, the Group implemented an internal retirement plan to 
handle internal retirement procedures for qualified employees. During the retiring period, the 
Group pays the retired employees’ living expenses and pays various social insurances and 
housing provident funds for the relevant employees until they reach the official retirement age 
(male: 60 years old, female: 50 years old or 55 years old). The payment amount of various 
social insurance and housing provident fund is determined according to the payment base 
and the payment ratio, and the enterprise payment ratio is determined according to the local 
social insurance payment policy. The group calculates the monthly internal retirement living 
expenses payable to the employees who participate in the internal retirement plan according 
to the standard of internal retirement living expenses formulated by the Company, and pays 
various social insurances and housing provident funds for these employees in accordance 
with local social insurance payment policy. The present value of the termination benefits 
obligations is determined by the expected cumulative benefit unit method. In 2022, the 
Group updated the internal retirement management method, and added 204 internal retirees 
(2021:10).
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31. Long-term employee benefits payable (Continued)

The principal actuarial assumptions used as at the balance sheet date are as follows:

2022 2021

Discount rate 2.40% 2.40%
Retirement age
Male 60歲 60歲
Female 50歲╱55歲 50歲╱55歲
Benefits increase rate 4.00–8.00% 4.00–8.00%   

The Group adjusted the payment obligations based on the average mortality rate of Chinese 
residents determined by the “China Life Insurance Industry Experience Life Table (2010–
2013)”, and included the future payment obligation generated by the adjusted internal 
retirement plan into the current profit and loss after being discounted at the interest rate of 
national debt for the same period as of 31 December 2022. As of December 31, 2022, the 
liabilities expected to be paid within 12 months are classified to the short-term employee 
compensation payable.

Net liabilities of defined benefit plan

The group started to operate a defined benefit plan without capital injection for all qualified 
employees in 2018. After retirement, employees have the right to enjoy subsidies other than 
the overall pension paid to them by the group on a regular basis. The amount of the subsidy 
consists of the sum of RMB38 and the length of service wage. The plan is subject to interest 
rate risk, turnover rate and the risk of changes in life expectancy of pension beneficiaries. 
The group calculates the monthly allowance payable to the employees who participate in 
the internal retirement plan according to the retirement allowance plan formulated by the 
Company. The present value of the defined benefit obligations is determined by the expected 
cumulative benefit unit method. The employees who officially retire from the Group from 2022 
will no longer enjoy the original subsidy of RMB38 and the sum of the working age wage 
(working age *1), and the retirees in previous years will continue to enjoy the subsidy.
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(CONTINUED)

31. Long-term employee benefits payable (Continued)

Net liabilities of defined benefit plan (Continued)

The principal actuarial assumptions used as at the balance sheet date are as follows:

2022 2021

Discount rate 3.05% 3.30%
Turnover rate 1.50% 1.50%   

The Group adjusted the payment obligations based on the average mortality rate of Chinese 
residents determined by the “China Life Insurance Industry Experience Life Table (2010–
2013)”, and included the future payment obligation generated by the adjusted internal 
retirement plan into the current profit and loss after being discounted at the interest rate of 
national debt for the same period as of December 31.

The quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions used is as follows:

2022

Increase

Increase/
(decrease) in 
present value 

of defined 
benefit 

obligations Decrease

Increase/
(decrease) in 
present value 

of defined 
benefit 

obligations

(%) (%)

Discount rate 0.50 (2,768,291.00) 0.50 2,961,435.70
Leaving rate 0.50 (33,017.93) 0.50 33,844.34
Death rate 5.00 (163,917.85) 5.00 170,902.32     
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31. Long-term employee benefits payable (Continued)

Net liabilities of defined benefit plan (Continued)

2021

Increase

Increase/
(decrease) in 
present value 

of defined 
benefit 

obligations Decrease

Increase/
(decrease) in 
present value 

of defined 
benefit 

obligations

(%) (%)

Discount rate 0.50 (5,956,507.65) 0.50 6,654,782.05
Leaving rate 0.50 (1,543,614.41) 0.50 1,655,240.84
Death rate 5.00 (527,720.95) 5.00 550,918.55     

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on a method that extrapolates the 
impact on defined benefit obligations as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions 
occurring at the balance sheet date. The sensitivity analysis is based on a change in a 
significant assumption, keeping all other assumptions constant. The sensitivity analysis may 
not be representative of an actual change in the defined benefit obligations as it is unlikely 
that changes in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another.



For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Unit: RMB)

290 2022 Annual Report

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(CONTINUED)

31. Long-term employee benefits payable (Continued)

Net liabilities of defined benefit plan (Continued)

The total expenses recognised in profit or loss in respect of the plan are as follows:

2022 2021

Current service costs (37,966,601.30) 3,590,712.53
Net interest expense 407,198.08 1,600,000.00   

Net post-employment benefits (37,559,403.22) 5,190,712.53   

Charged to cost of sales (30,038,101.91) –
Charged to distribution and selling expenses (984,855.80) –
Charged to administrative expenses (6,943,643.59) 3,590,712.53
Charged to finance expenses 407,198.08 1,600,000.00   

Closing balance (37,559,403.22) 5,190,712.53   

Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligations are as follows:

2022 2021

Amount at beginning of the year 47,160,712.53 42,480,000.00

Charged to profit or loss

Current service costs (37,966,601.30) 3,590,712.53

Net interest expense 407,198.08 1,600,000.00

Charged to other comprehensive income 1,585,194.71 –

Other movement

Defined benefit due within one year (441,369.73) (510,000.00)   

Amount at the end of the year 10,745,134.29 47,160,712.53   
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32. Provisions

2022

Opening 
balance Increase Decrease

Closing 
balance

Onerous contracts 
pending to be 
exercised – 5,540,444.09 – 5,540,444.09     

33. Deferred income

Government grants
Opening 
balance Increase Decrease

Closing 
balance

2022 56,902,583.91 28,209,400.00 5,369,054.52 79,742,929.39     

2021 35,901,730.43 23,369,908.00 2,369,054.52 56,902,583.91     

As at 31 December 2022, details of government grants as follows：

Opening 
balance Additions

Recognition 
during the 

year as 
other income

Decrease 
(Note)

Closing 
balance

Related to 
assets/
income

Grants for construction 
of environmental 
protection equipment 
and facilities

28,965,083.91 28,209,400.00 (119,054.52) (3,000,000.00) 54,055,429.39 Related to 
asset

Grants for recycle heat 
power station

27,937,500.00 – (2,250,000.00) – 25,687,500.00 Related to 
asset       

56,902,583.91 28,209,400.00 (2,369,054.52) (3,000,000.00) 79,742,929.39       
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33. Deferred income (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, details of government grants as follows：

Opening balance Additions

Recognition during 
the year as 

other income Closing balance
Related to 
assets/income

Grants for construction 
of environmental 
protection equipment 
and facilities

5,714,230.43 23,369,908.00 (119,054.52) 28,965,083.91 Related to asset

Grants for recycle heat 
power station

30,187,500.00 – (2,250,000.00) 27,937,500.00 Related to asset

      

35,901,730.43 23,369,908.00 (2,369,054.52) 56,902,583.91      

Note:  In July 2022, due to the cancellation of the bar intelligent roller ring grinding room project, 
the company returned the special fund of Chongqing Economic and Information Technology 
Commission of RMB3,000,000.00.

For details of government grants credited to the current profit or loss or offset against the 
related cost in the current year, please refer to Note V.46.

34. Share capital

2022

Opening 
balance

Movements during the year

Closing 
balance

New shares 
issued Bonus issue

Reserve 
transferred to 

shares Others Subtotal

Non-restricted shares
A shares 8,380,475,067.00 – – – – – 8,380,475,067.00
H shares 538,127,200.00 – – – – – 538,127,200.00        

8,918,602,267.00 – – – – – 8,918,602,267.00        
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33. Share capital (Continued)

2021

Opening 
balance

Movements during the year

Closing 
balance

New shares 
issued Bonus issue

Reserve 
transferred to 

shares Others Subtotal

Restricted shares
A shares 36,662,000.00
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36. Other comprehensive income

Balance of other comprehensive income attributable to the shareholders of the parent 
company in the consolidated statement of financial position are as follows:

2022

Opening balance Increase/decrease Closing balance

Changes from remeasurement of defined benefit plans – 1,585,194.71 1,585,194.71
Changes in fair value of other equity instrument 

investments – (4,250,000.00) (4,250,000.00)    

– (2,664,805.29) (2,664,805.29)    

2022

Before tax

Reclassification 
from other 

comprehensive 
income to 

profit or loss

Reclassification 
from other 

comprehensive 
income to 

retained earnings
Less: corporate 

income tax
attributable to 

the shareholders

Other comprehensive income that cannot be 
reclassified to profit or loss

Changes from remeasurement of defined benefit 
plans 1,585,194.71 – – – 1,585,194.71

Changes in fair value of other equity instrument 
investments (5,000,000.00) – – (750,000) (4,250,000.00)      

(3,414,805.29) – – (750,000) (2,664,805.29)      
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37. Specialized reserves

Safety fund
Opening 
balance Increase Decrease

Closing 
balance

2022 18,593,416.55 55,971,177.10 67,190,027.32 7,374,566.33     

2021 22,184,305.43 30,460,231.07 34,051,119.95 18,593,416.55     

Special reserve in 2022 accrued according to article of No.136 “The Withdrawal and Use of 
Enterprise Special Reserve” issued by the Ministry of Finance and the Ministry of Emergency 
(應急部) on November 21, 2022.

Special reserve of previous years was the safety fund accrued according to article of No.16 
“The regulation on the accrual and usage of enterprise’s safety production fee” (Cai Qi [2012] 
No.16) promulgated by the MOF and the State Administration of Work Safety (國家安全生產監
管總局) on February 14, 2012.

38. Surplus reserves

2022 and 2021

Opening 
balance Increase Decrease

Closing 
balance

Statutory surplus reserves 606,990,553.42 – – 606,990,553.42     

In accordance with Articles of Association of the Company, the net profits should be used 
first to make up for the previous year’s losses. The Company should appropriate 10% of the 
net profit which had been offset for the previous year’s losses to the statutory surplus reserve, 
where the appropriation can be ceased when the statutory surplus reserve reaches 50% of the 
registered capital.
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39. Unappropriated profit

2022 2021

Opening balance (6,451,122,133.31) (8,725,516,694.93)
Add: Net profit attributable to the shareholders of the parent (1,019,409,354.34) 2,274,394,561.62   

Balance at end of the current year (7,470,531,487.65) (6,451,122,133.31)   

40. Revenue

2022 2021

Revenue Cost Revenue Cost

Revenue from principal 
operations 36,273,788,361.37 36,354,477,662.44 37,466,955,896.07 33,595,259,641.26

Revenue from other operations 287,742,847.86 237,911,588.93 2,382,462,420.85 2,355,128,212.30     

36,561,531,209.23 36,592,389,251.37 39,849,418,316.92 35,950,387,853.56     

The revenue is as follows:

2022 2021

Revenue from contracts with customers 36,559,725,162.11 39,848,600,537.54
Rental income 1,806,047.12 817,779.38   

36,561,531,209.23 39,849,418,316.92   
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40. Revenue (Continued)

Disaggregation of Revenue from contracts with customers are as follows:

2022

Main product type
Sale of steel 

products and Billets Others Total

Hot rolled sheets 17,256,980,356.18 – 17,256,980,356.18
Plates 11,202,787,107.15 – 11,202,787,107.15
Bars 4,488,879,402.27 – 4,488,879,402.27
Wire rods 931,024,554.70 – 931,024,554.70
Billets 52,304,809.69 – 52,304,809.69
Others – 2,627,748,932.12 2,627,748,932.12    

33,931,976,229.99 2,627,748,932.12 36,559,725,162.11    

Disaggregation of Revenue from contracts with customers are as follows:

2021

Main product type
Sale of steel 

products and Billets Others Total

Hot rolled sheets 17,940,118,437.18 – 17,940,118,437.18
Plates 10,266,001,818.85 – 10,266,001,818.85
Bars 68,289,487.23 – 68,289,487.23
Billets 4,943,791,725.51 – 4,943,791,725.51
Others – 6,630,399,068.77 6,630,399,068.77    

33,218,201,468.77 6,630,399,068.77 39,848,600,537.54    



For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Unit: RMB)

298 2022 Annual Report

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(CONTINUED)

40. Revenue (Continued)

All the Group’s revenue was recognized at a certain point.

Revenue recognised that was included in contract liabilities at the beginning of the year:

2022 2021

Sales payment in advance 2,185,095,400.45 2,554,165,098.26   

The Group completes its performance obligations when the customer obtains control of the 
relevant products. For steel product customers, it is usually necessary to receive payment in 
advance, and major customers are also provide with a 30-day 5t2830-day 5t2830alsl0.5 (s)10.2 ( d)0.5 (t)0.aoy 5t28d
0.periodary o948rceive payers are4also provide with ment in 
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45. Financial expenses

2022 2021

Interest expenses 302,774,461.79 486,272,752.81
Less: Interest income 58,831,730.38 112,938,538.47
Less: Capitalized amount of interest 5,416,739.18 –
Net exchange gain/(loss) 110,837,582.49 (7,154,577.63)
Others 9,541,185.17 14,542,948.38   

358,904,759.89 380,722,585.09   

46. Other income

2022 2021

Government grants related to the ordinary course  
of business 96,402,921.87 58,297,889.07   

Government subsidy related to routine activities：

2022 2021
Relate to assets 
or income

Grants for recycle heat power project 2,250,000.00 2,250,000.00 Related to asset
Others 119,054.52 119,054.52 Related to asset
Position stability subsidies 3,935,378.00 – Related to 

income
Subsidies for product R&D – 9,354,800.00 Related to 

income
Innovation-driven project rewards 739,567.50 1,409,005.00 Related to 

income
Tax refund 40,848,132.76 43,182,848.38 Related to 

income
Financial assistance for the fight 

against COVID-19
47,500,000.00 – Related to 

income
Others 1,010,789.09 1,982,181.17 Related to 

income    

96,402,921.87 58,297,889.07    
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47. Investment income

2022 2021

Investment income recognised through equity method 8,586,343.64 8,132,826.55
Gains from business combination not involving entities 

under common control which is achieved in stages – 8,209,792.92
Investment income of held-for-trading financial assets 

during the holding period 24,083,835.65 203.69   

32,670,179.29 16,342,823.16   

48. Impairment losses on credit

2022 2021

Loss from impairment of accounts receivable (46,070.00) (15,085.00)
Loss from impairment of other receivables 9,529,661.39 (19,036,690.83)   

9,483,591.39 (19,051,775.83)   

49. Impairment losses on assets

2022 2021

Loss from write-down of inventories (142,067,098.46) (89,438,224.81)
Loss from impairment of PPE (108,630,735.28) (259,113,921.02)   

(250,697,833.74) (348,552,145.83)   

The Group recognised PPE’s impairment loss of RMB108,630,735.28, which was due to the 
Group’s provision for impairment of PPE that were planned to be dismantled and not scrapped 
during the upgrading and transformation of production equipment. The asset group consists 
of Plants and buildings, Machineries and other equipment. The recoverable amount is 
determined based on the net amount of the estimated assets’ fair value less costs of sale.
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50. Non-operating income

2022 2021

Amount included 
in non-recurring 

profit or loss

Incomes from fines 167,000.02 1,250,200.00 167,000.02
Gains on reorganization of debts (Note) – 145,392,912.58 –
Others 2,355,782.82 3,054,264.23 2,355,782.82    

2,522,782.84 149,697,376.81 2,522,782.84    

Note:  The company announced the completion of the reorganization plan on January 3, 2018. According 
to the relevant laws and regulations of bankruptcy and reorganization, the debt repayment funds 
and stocks deposited by the company shall be returned to the listed company for supplementary 
working capital if the creditor fails to receive the debt repayment funds due to its own reasons 
after three years from the date of the announcement of the completion of the implementation of 
the reorganization plan. The company recognised that it has not yet declared the proceeds of 
reorganized debt RMB145,392,912.58 for the current year.

51. Non-operating expenses

2022 2021

Amount included 
in non-recurring 

profit or loss

Carbon emission 28,380,265.49 164,952,633.87 –
Losses from disposal of non-current  

assets (Note) 8,477,671.21 181,101,776.44 8,477,671.21
Losses from fines 1,004,667.92 1,086,848.44 1,004,667.92
Others 801,868.27 1,206,107.91 801,868.27    

38,664,472.89 348,347,366.66 10,284,207.40    

Note:  Losses from disposal of non-current asset mainly accounts for the net loss generated by the 
scrapping of buildings, cancellation or scrapping of construction projects in progress this year.
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52. Expenses by nature

The COGS, distr ibution and sel l ing expenses, general and administrat ive expenses 
categorized by nature as follows:

2022 2021

Raw materials and low value consumables,  
maintenance and spare parts, etc. 31,006,522,671.12 30,898,810,975.13

Movement in finished goods and work in progress 607,943,149.82 47,869,377.50
Labor costs 1,500,836,259.20 1,279,914,490.44
Repair costs 1,335,634,883.25 1,560,004,135.72
Depreciation and amortization 1,470,366,631.71 1,288,756,310.21
Transportation and inspection fee 579,499,960.86 678,088,177.98
Rental not recognised as lease liabilities 2,878,302.09 3,496,762.35
Loss on suspension of production – 88,720,890.75
Office charges 7,618,753.61 8,358,612.03
Safety expenses 55,971,177.10 30,460,231.07
Others 542,376,654.29 663,356,982.75   

37,109,648,443.05 36,547,836,945.93   

53. Income tax expenses

2022 2021

Current tax 2,533,282.68 –
Deferred tax (185,019,056.26) (11,509,003.54)   

(182,485,773.58) (11,509,003.54)   



For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Unit: RMB)

305Chongqing Iron & Steel Company Limited 

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(CONTINUED)

53. Income tax expenses (Continued)

The reconciliation between income tax expenses and total profit is as follows:

2022 2021

Profit before tax (1,201,895,127.92) 2,262,885,558.08
Tax rate 15.00% 15.00%
Tax at the statutory tax rate (180,284,269.19) 339,432,833.71
Effect of different tax rate for subsidiary (3,954,769.60) (6,304,158.27)
Costs, expenses and losses not deductible for tax 6,995,986.36 38,076,761.07
Income not subject to tax (5,242,721.15) (8,755,581.74)
Utilization of deductible losses and deductible temporary 

differences from prior years – (400,275,525.43)
Effect of unrecognized deductible temporary differences – 26,316,667.12   

Income tax expenses at the effective tax rate of the Group (182,485,773.58) (11,509,003.54)   

All the Group’s profit is from Mainland China.

54. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the consolidated net profit for the current 
year attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of 
ordinary shares outstanding. Shares are usually included in the weighted average number of 
shares from the date of their issuance according to the terms of contract of issuance.

The Group does not hold potential shares that are dilutive.

2022 2021

RMB per share RMB per share

Basic earnings per share
Continuing operations (0.11) 0.26   
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54. Earnings per share (Continued)

2022 2021

Earnings
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the  

Company (RMB) Continuing operations (RMB) (1,019,409,354.34) 2,274,394,561.62   

Number of shares
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 8,918,602,267 8,894,160,734   

No change occurred in the year from the balance sheet date to the date of approval of the 
financial statements, resulting in changes in the number of ordinary shares or potential 
ordinary shares outstanding on the balance sheet date.

55. Notes to items of the consolidated cash flow statement

Other cash received relating to operating activities

2022 2021

Government grants 57,470,782.35 12,745,986.17
Interest income 58,831,730.38 112,938,538.47
Transaction intercourse 51,802,758.51 –
Guarantees and deposit 29,757,042.66 26,947,931.62   

197,862,313.90 152,632,456.26   
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55. Notes to items of the consolidated cash flow statement (Continued)

Other cash payments relating to operating activities

2022 2021

General and administrative expenses 95,208,336.98 208,447,468.37

Distribution and selling expenses 34,979,821.88 49,905,944.33
Transaction intercourse paid 68,287,855.74 64,945,319.59
Carbon emission paid 67,299,892.37 73,032,000.00
Others 18,373,801.40 27,121,301.48   

284,149,708.37 423,452,033.77   

Other cash received relating to investing activities

2022 2021

Collected amount for another in disposal  
of leased assets – 37,391,944.68

Others – 23,369,908.00   

– 60,761,852.68   
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55. Notes to items of the consolidated cash flow statement (Continued)

Other cash receipts relating to financing activities

2022 2021

Receipt of non-trading transfer payment  
for treasury shares – 65,939,636.53

Receipt of leaseback – 1,679,301,806.59   

– 1,745,241,443.12   

Cash payments relating to other investing activities

2022 2021

Bankruptcy reorganization loan paid – 577,693.41

Leaseback paid 690,546,272.42 521,205,353.14
Lease rent paid 142,878,947.06 297,044,354.84   

833,425,219.48 818,827,401.39   
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56 Supplementary information to the cash flow statement

(1) Supplementary information to the cash flow statement

Reconciliation of profit/(loss) to cash flows from operating activities:

2022 2021

Profit/(loss) (1,019,409,354.34) 2,274,394,561.62
Add: Impairment losses on assets 250,697,833.74 348,552,145.83

Credit profit/(loss) (9,483,591.39) 19,051,775.83
Depreciation of fixed assets 1,270,230,016.49 904,387,781.33
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 129,579,575.53 273,581,697.63
Amortisation of intangible assets 70,523,112.81 69,293,529.44
Amortisation of long-term prepaid expenses 33,926.88 41,493,301.81
Amortisation of deferred income (2,369,054.52) (2,369,054.52)
Losses from disposal of fixed assets, intangible 

assets and other long-term assets (1,675,134.36) 4,734,013.82
Disposal of long-term assets 8,477,671.21 181,216,642.77
Finance expenses 280,603,832.21 477,724,386.52
Investment income (32,670,179.29) (16,342,823.16)
Increase in deferred income tax assets (184,671,279.57) (11,099,972.51)
Decrease in deferred tax liabilities (347,776.69) (409,031.04)
Decrease in inventories 1,105,374,239.99 1,130,301,779.60
Decrease/(increase) in operating receivables 495,617,924.35 (2,337,766,744.40)
Increase/(Decrease) in operating payables (879,205,854.00) 2,268,280,265.50
Others (11,218,850.22) (3,590,888.88)   

Net cash flows from operating activities 1,470,087,058.83 5,621,433,367.19   



For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Unit: RMB)

310 2022 Annual Report

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(CONTINUED)

56 Supplementary information to the cash flow statement (Continued)

(2) Endorsement amount of notes receivable with no cash receipts and payments：

2022 2021

Endorsement amount of notes receivable 3,795,423,410.11 5,848,091,921.08
Including: Payment for goods and labor 3,186,864,151.26 3,184,521,894.70

Payment for equipment and 
construction 608,559,258.85 2,663,570,026.38   

(3) Components of cash and cash equivalents:

2022 2021

Cash 3,937,932,833.28 5,832,238,132.54
Including: Cash on hand – –

Bank deposits on demand 3,937,932,833.28 5,832,238,132.54   

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 3,937,932,833.28 5,832,238,132.54   

(4) Information about subsidiaries and other business units acquired:

2022 2021

Prices paid to acquire subsidiaries and other 
business units

Including: The amount paid for acquiring 72% 
equity interest in Xingang Changlong – 114,420,550.08   

Cash and cash equivalents paid to acquire 
subsidiaries and other business units – 114,420,550.08   

Less: Cash and cash equivalents held by 
subsidiaries and other business units when 
acquired – 58,607.75

Net cash payments for acquisition of subsidiaries 
and other business units – 114,361,942.33   



For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Unit: RMB)

311Chongqing Iron & Steel Company Limited 

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(CONTINUED)

57. Assets with limited ownership or use right

2022 2021

Cash and bank balances 57,742,846.62 578,407,051.67 (Note 1)
Receivables financing 100,119,944.03 317,201,912.00 (Note 2)
Property, plant and equipment 3,205,875,127.07 8,226,586,231.14 (Note 3)
Intangible assets 289,098,468.82 783,824,472.71 (Note 4)
equity interest 837,609,884.19 837,609,884.19 (Note 5)    

4,490,446,270.73 10,743,629,551.71    

Note 1:  As a t  31 December 2022,  the Group had cash and bank ba lances amounted to 
RMB57,742,846.62 (31 December 2021: RMB578,407,051.67) restricted for bank acceptance 
notes and letter of credit.

Note 2:  As at 31 December 2022, the Group pledged bank acceptance notes with a carrying amount of 
RMB100,119,944.03 (31 December 2021: RMB317,201,912.00) for issuing bank acceptance.

Note 3:  As at 31 December 2022, the plants and buildings with a carrying amount of RMB94,398,773.70 
(31 December 2021: RMB797,065,866.07) and machineries and other equipment with a 
carrying amount of RMB3,111,476,353.37 (31 December 2021: 7,429,520,365.08) were 
pledged to banks to secure the bank loans and facilities granted to the Group.

Note 4:  As at 31 December 2022, the land use right with a carrying amount of RMB289,098,468.82 (31 
December 2021: RMB783,824,472.71) were pledged to banks to secure the bank loans and 
facilities granted to the Group. The amortization of land use right above for the current year 
was RMB8,171,640.84 (31 December 2021: RMB21,935,569.20).

Note 5:  As at 31 December 2022, the equity interest with a carrying amount of RMB837,609,884.19 
(31 December 2021: RMB837,609,884.19) was pledged to secure the bank loans of 
RMB335,000,000.00 (31 December 2021: RMB450,000,000.00)
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58. Foreign currency monetary items

2022 2021

Original 
currency

Change in 
USD rate

Translated 
into RMB

Original 
currency

Change in 
USD rate

Translated 
into RMB

Cash and 
bank 
balances

Wherein: 
USD 9,209,779.74 6.9646 64,142,431.98 38,429.77 6.3757 245,016.68
HKD 6,113.97 0.8933 5,461.61 6,113.35 0.8176 4,998.27       

64,147,893.59 250,014.95       

2022 2021

Original 
currency

Change in 
USD rate

Translated 
into RMB

Original 
currency

Change in 
USD rate

Translated 
into RMB

Trade 
receivables

Wherein: USD – 6.9646 – 31,688,378.06 6.3757 202,035,592.00       

– 202,035,592.00       
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VI. INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES

1. Equity in subsidiaries

Information of the subsidiaries are presented as follows:

Principal place 
of business/

Place of 
incorporation Nature of business

Registered 
capital Ownership interest (%)

Direct Indirect

Chongqing Iron and Steel Energy. Changshou Economic 
Development 
District, Chongqing

Changshou Economic 
Development 
District, Chongqing

Electricity production 
and sales

525,694,938.14 100 –

Xingang Changlong. Changshou Economic 
Development 
District, Chongqing

Changshou Economic 
Development 
District, Chongqing

Transportation and 
warehousing 
industry

110,000,000.00 100 –

       

On 31 December 2022, there was no subsidiary with non-controlling interests that are material 
to the Group.

2. Equity in joint ventures and associates

 Ownership interest (%)

Principal place 
of business/ Place of incorporation Nature of business

Registered 
capital Direct Indirect

Accounting 
policy

Associates
Baocheng Carbon 

(Note 1)
Changshou Economic 

Development Zone, 
Chongqing

Changshou Economic 
Development Zone, 
Chongqing

Manufacturing industry 33,333,000.00 10 – Equity method

Baowu Raw Materials 
(Note 2)

Shanghai Free Trade 
Zone

Shanghai Free Trade 
Zone

Trading industry 500,000,000.00 8 – Equity method

Baowu Environmental 
Resource (Note 3)

Changshou Economic 
Development Zone, 
Chongqing

Changshou Economic 
Development Zone, 
Chongqing

Manufacturing industry 100,000,000.00 49 – Equity method

Baowu Jingcheng 
(Note 4)

Zhoushan, Zhejiang 
Province

Zhoushan, Zhejiang 
Province

Manufacturing industry 180,000,000.00 19 – Equity method
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2. Equity in joint ventures and associates (Continued)

Note 1:  The Company holds 10% equity interest in Baocheng Carbon and dispatches a director to the 
board of directors of Baocheng Carbon, who accordingly enjoys substantive right to participate 
in decision-making, and has a significant influence on Baocheng Carbon.

Note 2:  The Company holds 8% equity interest in Baowu Raw Materials and dispatches a director 
to the Baowu Raw Materials Board of Directors, who accordingly enjoys substantive right to 
participate in decision-making, and has a significant impact on Baowu Raw Materials.

Note 3:  The Company holds 49% of equity interest in Baowu Environmental Resource. According to 
the articles of association, resolutions on matters discussed at the shareholders’ meeting shall 
be passed by shareholders representing more than half of the voting rights. Therefore, the 
company only has significant influence on Baowu Environmental Resource and accounts the 
latter as an associate.

Note 4:  The Company holds 19% equity interest in Baowu Jingcheng and dispatches a director to the 
board of directors of Baowu Jingcheng, who accordingly enjoys substantive right to participate 
in decision-making, and has a significant influence on Baowu Jingcheng.

Financial information of associates is as follows:

2022 2021

Associates
Carrying amount of investment 111,123,058.00 58,159,798.61
Total amount calculated by shareholding ratio as 

follows 8,586,343.64 8,132,826.55
Net profit 8,586,343.64 8,132,826.55
Other comprehensive income – –
Total comprehensive income – –   
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VII. RISK RELATED TO FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

1. Financial instruments by category

Carrying amounts of various financial instruments at the balance sheet date are as follows:

2022

Financial assets

Financial assets 
at fair value 

through other 
comprehensive 

income

Financial 
assets 

at fair value 
through profit 

or loss

Financial 
assets at 

amortized cost Total

Cash and bank balances – – 3,995,675,679.90 3,995,675,679.90
Trade receivables – – 38,789,243.44 38,789,243.44
Receivables financing 

(acquired by standards) 799,686,555.46 – – 799,686,555.46
Other receivables – – 34,846,186.58 34,846,186.58     

799,686,555.46 – 4,069,311,109.92 4,868,997,665.38     
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VII. RISK RELATED TO FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

1. Financial instruments by category (Continued)

Carrying amounts of various financial instruments at the balance sheet date are as follows: 
(Continued)

2021

Financial assets

Financial assets 
at fair value 

through other 
comprehensive 

income

Financial 
assets 

at fair value 
through profit 

or loss

Financial 
assets at 

amortized cost Total

Cash and bank balances – – 6,410,645,184.21 6,410,645,184.21
Trade receivables – – 53,885,153.18 53,885,153.18
Receivables financing 

(acquired by standards) 1,536,724,383.19 – – 1,536,724,383.19
Other receivables – – 52,279,270.02 52,279,270.02
Other equity investment 

(designated) 5,000,000.00 – – 5,000,000.00
Financial assets held for 

trading (acquired by 
standards) – 600,000,000.00 – 600,000,000.00     

1,541,724,383.19 600,000,000.00 6,516,809,607.41 8,658,533,990.60     
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VII. RISK RELATED TO FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

1. Financial instruments by category (Continued)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities measured at 
amortized cost

2022 2021

Short-term borrowings 1,106,441,170.84 2,629,733,817.52
Notes payable 609,367,940.00 1,261,138,336.43
Trade payables 3,115,966,628.22 4,567,985,507.84
Other payables 2,720,896,934.96 2,770,508,515.09
Current portion of non-current liabilities 2,352,484,115.99 1,582,635,108.56
Long-term borrowings 2,751,945,100.00 1,792,800,000.00
Bonds payable – 498,433,703.78
Lease liabilities 278,352,825.03 408,135,050.59
Long-term payables 1,730,677,459.72 2,301,299,355.45   

14,666,132,174.76 17,812,669,395.26   

2. Transfers of financial assets

Transferred financial assets that are not derecognized in their entirety

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying value of bank acceptance bills endorsed by the Group 
to the supplier for settling accounts payable and other payables was RMB25,546,660.16 (31 
December 2021: Nil).The Group believes that the Group has retained almost all of its risks 
and rewards, including its relevant default risks. Therefore, the Group continued to recognize 
the full carrying amounts of the bank acceptance bills and corresponding settled accounts 
payable. Subsequent to the endorsement, the Group did not retain any rights on the use of the 
endorsed bills, including the sale, transfer or pledge of the endorsed bills to any other third 
parties.
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VII. RISK RELATED TO FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. Transfers of financial assets (Continued)

Transferred financial assets that are derecognised in their entirety in which continuing 
involvement exists

As at 31 December 2022, the Group endorsed certain bills receivable accepted by banks to its 
suppliers for settlement of trade payables and discounted bank acceptance bills to banks with 
a carrying amount of RMB2,788,645,475.68 (31 December 2021: RMB3,025,541,780.55). As of 
31 December 2022, the maturity date is within 6 months. According to the relevant provisions 
of the “Negotiable Instruments Law”, if the accepting bank refuses to pay, its holder has the 
right to recourse against the Group (“continued involvement”). The Group believes that the 
Group has transferred almost all of its risks and rewards. Therefore, the Group derecognized 
the book value of the bank acceptance bills and corresponding settled accounts payable. The 
maximum exposure to loss from the Company’s Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised 
Bills and the undiscounted cash flows to repurchase these Derecognised Bills is equal to 
their carrying amounts. The Group believes that the fair value from the Group’s continuing 
involvement is not significant.

In 2022, the Group has not recognized gains or losses on the transfer date. The Group had no 
current or accumulated gain or expense arising from the continuing involvement in financial 
assets which had been derecognized. The endorsement has been made evenly throughout 
the year.

3. Risks of financial instruments

The Group is exposed to various types of risks from financial instruments during its ordinary 
course of business, mainly including credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk with foreign 
exchange risk and interest rate risk inclusive. Financial instruments of the Group are mainly 
comprised of cash and bank balances, financial assets held for trading, trade receivables, 
receivables financing, notes payable, trade payables, loans etc. Risks associated with these 
financial instruments and policies of the risk management to lowering the risks of the Group 
are summarised below.
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VII. RISK RELATED TO FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

3. Risks of financial instruments (Continued)

Directors are responsible for planning and establishing the risk management structure 
of the Group, designating the risk management policies and the related guidance for the 
Group, and monitoring the implementation of risk management measures. The Group has 
risk management policies in place to identify and analyze the risk exposure of the Group. 
These risk management policies have defined particular risks, covering the aspects of the 
management of market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group will decide whether it 
is necessary to update the risk management policies and system by regularly evaluating 
changes in market environment and the operating activities of the Group. Risk management 
of the Group is carried out by the board. The board identifies, evaluates and mitigates the 
relevant risks by closely working with other business departments. Internal audit department of 
the Group will conduct audit regularly on risk management control and procedures and submit 
the audit results to the audit committee of the Group.

The Group spreads the risks of financial instruments by appropriately diversifying its 
investment and business portfolios and mitigates the risks of concentrating in any single 
industry, specific region or certain counterparty through the development of appropriate risk 
management policies.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties. According to the 
Group’s policy, all customers who require credit transactions are required to conduct a credit 
review. In addition, the Group continuously monitors the balance of accounts receivable to 
ensure that the Group does not face significant bad debt risks.

Since the counterparties of cash and bank balances and bank acceptance notes are placed 
in the well-established banks and with high credit ratings, these financial instruments are 
exposed to lower credit risk.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which comprise trade receivables, 
receivables financing, other equity investments, and financial assets held for trading, arises 
from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of 
these instruments.

The maximum exposure to credit risk of the Group at each end of the reporting period is the 
total amount charged to the customers less the amount of the impairment provision.

The Group is also exposed to credit risk for providing financial guarantees. Detailed 
information is disclosed in Note XI.
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VII. RISK RELATED TO FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

3. Risks of financial instruments (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Definition of credit-impaired financial assets

In assessing whether a f inancial asset is credit-impaired, the Group considers both 
quantitative and qualitative indicators and adopts the standard of determination in line with 
internal credit risk management goal of the relevant financial instruments. The Group assesses 
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired by considering the following factors:

(1) Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the debtor;

(2) Debtors are in breach of contract, such as defaulting on interest or becoming overdue 
on interest or principal payments overdue;

(3) The creditor of the debtor, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the debtor’s 
financial difficulty, having granted to the debtor a concession that the creditor would not 
otherwise consider;

(4) It is becoming probable that the debtor wil l enter bankruptcy or other financial 
restructuring;

(5) The disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial 
difficulties of the issuer or the debtor;

(6) The purchase or origination of a financial asset at a deep discount that reflects the 
incurred credit losses;

The impairment of financial assets may not be necessarily due to a single discrete event; The 
combined effects of multiple events may result in financial assets being credit-impaired.
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VII. RISK RELATED TO FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

3. Risks of financial instruments (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Definition of credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the analysis of gross carrying amounts and credit risk exposure of 
financial assets are as follows:

12-month 
expected credit 

losses Lifetime expected credit loss

TotalStage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Simplified 
approach

Cash and bank 
balance 3,995,675,679.90 – – – 3,995,675,679.90

Accounts receivable – – – 39,898,006.57 39,898,006.57
Receivables financing 799,686,555.46 – – – 799,686,555.46
Other receivables 33,410,696.33 1,866,774.57 2,287,225.80 – 37,564,696.70      

4,828,772,931.69 1,866,774.57 2,287,225.80 39,898,006.57 4,872,824,938.63      

As at 31 December 2021, the analysis of gross carrying amounts and credit risk exposure of 
financial assets are as follows:

12-month 
expected credit 

losses Lifetime expected credit loss

TotalStage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Simplified 
approach

Cash and bank 
balance 6,410,645,184.21 – – – 6,410,645,184.21

Accounts receivable – – – 54,947,846.31 54,947,846.31
Receivables financing1,536,724,383.19 – – – 1,536,724,383.19
Other receivables 50,843,779.77 1,866,774.57 22,113,916.63 – 74,824,470.97      

7,998,213,347.17 1,866,774.57 22,113,916.63 54,947,846.31 8,077,141,884.68      
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VII. RISK RELATED TO FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

3. Risks of financial instruments (Continued)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may encounter deficiency of funds in meeting 
obligations associated with cash or other financial assets settlement, which is possibly 
attributable to failure in collecting liabilities from counterparts of contracts, or early redemption 
of debts, or failure in achieving estimated cash flows.

The Company and its subsidiaries were responsible for their own cash management, including 
the short-term investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover expected cash 
demands (subject to approval by the board of directors of the Company when the borrowings 
exceeded certain predetermined levels of authority). The Group’s liquidity management 
method was to make sure enough liquidity for the performance of matured debts, so as not 
to cause any unacceptable losses or any damage to its reputation. As at 31 December 2022, 
the Group’s current liabilities already exceeded current assets by RMB4,548,307,549.37 (31 
December 2021: 2,060,756,722.06).

The tables below summarise the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on 
contractual undiscounted cash flows:

2022

Carrying amount
Undiscounted 

contract amount Within 1 year 1–2 years 2–5 years

Short-term borrowings 1,106,441,170.84 1,120,146,039.57 1,120,146,039.57 – –
Notes payable 609,367,940.00 609,367,940.00 609,367,940.00 – –
Trade payable 3,115,966,628.22 3,115,966,628.22 3,115,966,628.22 – –
Other payables 2,720,896,934.96 2,720,896,934.96 2,720,896,934.96 – –
Current portion of non-current 

liabilities 2,352,484,115.99 2,432,612,567.12 2,432,612,567.12 – –
Long-term borrowings 2,751,945,100.00 2,933,678,960.71 68,603,930.38 402,801,587.84 2,462,273,442.49
Lease liabilities 278,352,825.03 305,518,267.89 13,482,869.79 146,017,699.08 146,017,699.02
Long-term payables 1,730,677,459.72 1,911,739,721.35 80,943,140.40 741,265,200.73 1,089,531,380.22      

14,666,132,174.76 15,149,927,059.82 10,162,020,050.44 1,290,084,487.65 3,697,822,521.73      
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VII. RISK RELATED TO FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

3. Risks of financial instruments (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The tables below summarise the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on 
contractual undiscounted cash flows:

2021

Carrying amount
Undiscounted 

contract amount Within 1 year 1–2 years 2–5 years

Short-term borrowings 2,629,733,817.52 2,656,297,846.73 2,656,297,846.73 – –
Notes payable 1,261,138,336.43 1,261,138,336.43 1,261,138,336.43 – –
Trade payables 4,567,985,507.84 4,567,985,507.84 4,567,985,507.84 – –
Other payables 2,770,508,515.09 2,770,508,515.09 2,770,508,515.09 – –
Non-current liabilities due within 

one year 1,582,635,108.56 1,605,752,241.67 1,605,752,241.67 – –
Long-term borrowings 1,792,800,000.00 1,995,937,930.60 75,166,546.43 800,564,967.50 1,120,206,416.67
Bonds payables 498,433,703.78 556,781,369.86 5,481,369.86 551,300,000.00 –
Lease liabilities 408,135,050.59 444,949,598.05 6,896,500.87 146,017,699.08 292,035,398.10
Long-term payables 2,301,299,355.45 2,565,485,350.38 106,907,462.35 624,403,097.85 1,834,174,790.18      

17,812,669,395.26 18,424,836,696.65 13,056,134,327.27 2,122,285,764.43 3,246,416,604.95      

Market risk

Market risk refers to the risk of fluctuation in the fair value or the future cash flow of financial 
instruments due to the market price variation. Market risk mainly includes interest risk and 
foreign exchange risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk refers to the risk that the fair value of financial instruments or future cash 
flows will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk 
of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s debt obligations with a 
floating interest rate.

The Group’s revenue and operating cash flows are largely unaffected by fluctuation in market 
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VII. RISK RELATED TO FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

3. Risks of financial instruments (Continued)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group faced transactional foreign exchange risk, which was mainly correlated with 
purchasing in non-reporting currency.

During this year, the Group’s operating activities were carried out in Mainland China. Majority 
of transactions are denominated in RMB, the transactions of sales are denominated in RMB, 
and approximately 17.94% (2021: 12.94%) of purchase were denominated in US dollars for 
the purchase of iron ores. The finance department of the Group is responsible for monitoring 
the scale of foreign currency transactions and assets and liabilities in foreign currencies of the 
Group to reduce the foreign exchange risks to the largest extent. Fluctuations in the exchange 
rate of USD against RMB will affect the Group’s operating results.

For the carrying amount and exchange rate risk exposure of the Group’s monetary funds, 
accounts payable and prepayments, please refer to Note V. 58.

The following table shows the sensitivity analysis of exchange rate risk, reflecting that under 
the assumption that all other variables remain unchanged, when the US dollar exchange rate 
changes reasonably and possibly, it will affect the net profit and loss (due to the change in the 
fair value of monetary assets and monetary liabilities).

2022

Exchange 
rate Increase/

(Decrease)

Net profit 
Increase/

(Decrease)

Total 
shareholders’ 

equity Increase/
(Decrease)

%

RMB depreciation against the U.S. dollar 1 (641,424.34) (641,424.34)
RMB appreciation against the U.S. dollar (1) 641,424.34 641,424.34    
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VII. RISK RELATED TO FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

3. Risks of financial instruments (Continued)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

2021

Exchange 
rate Increase/

(Decrease)

Net profit 
Increase/

(Decrease)

Total
 shareholders’ 
equity Increase/

(Decrease)

%

RMB depreciation against the U.S. dollar 1 (1,381,714.27) (1,381,714.27)
RMB appreciation against the U.S. dollar (1) 1,381,714.27 1,381,714.27    

4. Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to safeguard the Group’s ability 
to continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its 
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments according to changes in 
economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the relevant assets. In order to maintain 
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, 
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not bound by any externally 
imposed capital requirements. In 2022 and 2021, the capital management objectives, policies 
or procedures were not changed.

2022 2021

Debt-to-asset ratio 45.78% 47.96%   
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VIII. DISCLOSURE OF FAIR VALUE

1. Assets and liabilities measured at fair value

2022

Fair value measurement using

Prices in 
active markets

Significant 
observable 

inputs

Significant 
unobservable 

inputs Total

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Other equity investment – – – –
Receivables financing – 799,686,555.46 – 799,686,555.46     

– 799,686,555.46 – 799,686,555.46     

31 December 2021

Fair value measurement using

Prices in 
active markets

Significant 
observable 

inputs

Significant 
unobservable 

inputs Total

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Other equity investment – – 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00
Receivables financing – 1,536,724,383.19 – 1,536,724,383.19
Financial assets held for 

trading – – 600,000,000.00 600,000,000.00     

– 1,536,724,383.19 605,000,000.00 2,141,724,383.19     
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VIII. DISCLOSURE OF FAIR VALUE (CONTINUED)

2. Assets and liabilities disclosed at fair value

2022

Fair value measurement using

Prices in 
active markets

Significant 
observable 

inputs

Significant 
unobservable 

inputs Total

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Long-term borrowings – 2,688,495,273.35 – 2,688,495,273.35
Lease liabilities – – 269,729,470.39 269,729,470.39
Long-term payables – 1,654,605,440.48 – 1,654,605,440.48     

– 4,343,100,713.83 269,729,470.39 4,612,830,184.22     

2021

Fair value measurement using

Prices in 
active markets

Significant 
observable 

inputs

Significant 
unobservable 

inputs Total

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Long-term borrowings – 1,730,834,409.11 – 1,730,834,409.11
Debentures payable – 497,114,841.95 – 497,114,841.95
Lease liabilities – – 389,818,060.00 389,818,060.00
Long-term payables – 2,161,518,251.62 – 2,161,518,251.62

 

–
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3. Fair value estimation

The illustration below is the disclosure on comparison between the fair value and the carrying 
amount for each class of financial assets and financial liabilities other than: (i) lease liabilities; 
and (ii) financial instruments where the difference between the carrying amount and the fair 
value is insignificant:

Carrying amount Fair value

31 December 
2022

31 December 
2021

31 December 
2022

31 December 
2021

Long-term borrowings 2,751,945,100.00 1,792,800,000.00 2,688,495,273.35 1,730,834,409.11
Bonds payable – 498,433,703.78 – 497,114,841.95
Lease liabilities 278,352,825.03 408,135,050.59 269,729,470.39 389,818,060.00
Long-term payables 1,730,677,459.72 2,301,299,355.45 1,654,605,440.48 2,161,518,251.62

     

4,760,975,384.75 5,000,668,109.82 4,612,830,184.22 4,779,285,562.68     

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash equivalents, financial assets 
held for trading, trade receivables, receivables financing, other receivables, short-term 
borrowings, notes payable, trade payables, other payables and non-current liabilities due 
within one year etc. approximate to their carrying amounts due to short remaining period.

The fair value of a financial asset or liability is the amount for which it could be exchanged 
or settled, respectively, between two knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length 
transaction, other than in a forced sale or liquidation.

The fair values of the long-term borrowings, bonds payable, lease liabilities, long-term 
payables and other non-current liabilities are determined using discount cash flows, at rates 
equal to interest rate of other financial instruments with similar contract terms, credit risks 
and remaining Term. As at 31 December 2022, non-performance risks underlying long-term 
borrowings and other non-current liabilities were appraised as immaterial.
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4. Unobservable input value

The overview of the significant unobservable inputs used by Level 3 fair value measurement is 
as follows:

Fair value as at 31 
December 2022

Valuation 
techniques Unobservable inputs

Benchmark 
interest rate

Trust products classified as 
Financial assets held for 
trading

2022: – Discounted cash 
flow method

Yield of Similar 
products in private 
market

–
2021：

600,000,000.00
2021：4.2%

     

The fair value of trust products in 2021 is assessed based on a discounted cash flow 
method. The method takes in market prices, discount rates and other inputs. The significant 
unobserved inputs is return rate of similar financial products in private market, 3.8997% for the 
part with subscription amount of RMB550,000,000 and 4.1089% for the part with subscription 
amount of RMB50,000,000
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5. Adjustment of fair value measurement

Reconciliation of recurring fair value measurements within Level 3 is as follows:

2022

Opening 

balance

Transfer 

into

Transfer 

out of Total gains or losses Purchase Issue Sale Settlements

Closing 

balance

Changes in 

unrealized gains 

or losses

Level 3 Level 3

Through 

profit or loss

Through other 

comprehensive 

income

Included in 

profit or loss 

for assets held 

at end of year
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IX. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS

1. Controlling shareholder

Name of the 
controlling 
shareholder

Place of 
registration Business nature

Registered 
capital

Shareholding 
proportion 

over the 
company

Voting right 
proportion 

over the 
Company

(%) (%)

Changshou  
Iron & Steel

Chongqing Technology development, 
technology transfer, 
technology service and 
management consultancy 
services of the fields of 
iron and steel, metallurgy 
and mining, coal, chemical 
industry, electricity and 
transportation; sales of raw 
materials, namely steel; 
operation of terminals; 
warehouse services; leases 
of owned property and 
equipment; import and export 
of goods and technology; 
corporate management and 
consultancy services

2,720,000 23.51 23.51

      

Changshou Iron & Steel is the controlling shareholder.

2. Subsidiary

Please refer to note VI. Interests in other entities for details of the Company’s subsidiaries.

3. Joint ventures and associates

Please refer to note VI. Interests in other entities for details of the Company’s joint ventures 
and associates.
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IX. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS 
(CONTINUED)

4. Other related parties

Name

Relationship between 
the Company and the 
other related parties

Sichuan Desheng Group Vanadium & Titanium Co., Ltd.
(“Desheng Vanadium & Titanium”) 四川德勝集團釩鈦 
有限公司(“德勝釩鈦”)

Shareholder of Changshou 
Iron & Steel

Baowu Group 寶武集團 Parent of Changshou Iron & 
Steel

Wuhan Baosteel Huazhong Trade Co., Ltd. (Baosteel 
Huazhong) 武漢寶鋼華中貿易有限公司(“寶鋼華中”)

Baowu Group’s subsidiary

Ouyeel Cloud Commerce Corporation Limited (Ouyeel Cloud) 
歐冶雲商股份有限公司(“歐冶雲商”)

Baowu Group’s subsidiary

Shanghai Ouyeel Material Technology Co., Ltd. (Ouyeel 
Material) 上海歐冶材料技術有限責任公司(“歐冶材料”)

Baowu Group’s subsidiary

Chengdu Baosteel West Trade Co., Ltd. (Baosteel West)  
成都寶鋼西部貿易有限公司(“寶鋼西部”)

Baowu Group’s subsidiary

Baosteel Engineering & Technology Group Co., Ltd. (Baosteel 
Engineering) 寶鋼工程技術集團有限公司(“寶鋼工程”)

Baowu Group’s subsidiary

Echeng Iron and Steel Co., Ltd. (“Echeng Iron and Steel”)  
寶武集團鄂城鋼鐵有限公司(“鄂城鋼鐵”)

Baowu Group’s subsidiary

Baosteel Huangshi Coating Plate Co., Ltd.(“Baosteel 
Huangshi”) 寶鋼股份黃石塗鍍板有限公司(“寶鋼黃石”)

Baowu Group’s subsidiary

Wisco Xiangyang Heavy Equipment Material Co., LTD. 
(“Xiangyang Equipment”) 武鋼集團襄陽重型裝備材料 
有限公司(“襄陽裝備”)

Baowu Group’s subsidiary

Baowu Group Finance Limited liability Company (“Baowu 
Finance “) 寶武集團財務有限責任公司(“寶武財務”)

Baowu Group’s subsidiary

Baosteel Development Co. Ltd. (“ Baosteel Development “) 
寶鋼發展有限公司(“寶鋼發展”)

Baowu Group’s subsidiary

Wuhan Iron & Steel Group Logistics Co., Ltd. (“ Wisco 
Logistics “)武漢鋼鐵集團物流有限公司(“武鋼物流”)

Baowu Group’s subsidiary
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Name

Relationship between 
the Company and the 
other related parties

Zhejiang Zhoushan Wugang Wharf Co., Ltd. (“Wugang 
Wharf”)浙江舟山武港碼頭有限公司(“武港碼頭”)

Baowu Group’s subsidiary

Guangdong Baodi Nanhua Industrial Development Co., Ltd. 
(“Baodi Nanhua”)廣東寶地南華產城發展有限公司(“寶地南華”)

Baowu Group’s subsidiary

Shanghai Baosteel Xinyue Talent Technology Co., Ltd. 
(“Baosteel Xinyue”)上海寶鋼心越人才科技有限公司 
(“寶鋼心越”)

Baowu Group’s subsidiary

Guangdong Kunlun Information Technology Co., Ltd. (“Kunlun 
Information”)廣東昆侖資訊科技有限公司(“昆侖資訊”)

Baowu Group’s subsidiary

Shanghai Baosteel Casting Corporation (“Baosteel Casting”) 
上海寶鋼鑄造股份有限公司(“寶鋼鑄造”)

Baowu Group’s subsidiary

Guangdong Zhongnan Iron and Steel Co., Ltd.(“Guangdong 
Zhongnan”,formerly known as” SGIS Songshan Co.,Ltd.”) 
廣東中南鋼鐵股份有限公司(“廣東中南”，曾用名”廣東韶鋼松
山股份有限公司”(“廣東韶鋼”))

Baowu Group’s subsidiary

Shanghai Baojing Information Technology Development Co., 
Ltd.(“Baojing Information”)上海寶景資訊技術發展有限公司
(“寶景資訊”)

Baowu Group’s subsidiary

Shanghai Steel Home Information Technology Co., Ltd. (“Steel 
Home Information”)上海鋼之家資訊科技有限公司 
(“鋼之家資訊”)

Baowu Group’s subsidiary

Wuhan Wisco Port Trade Terminal Co., Ltd. (“Wisco Port”)  
武漢武鋼港務外貿碼頭有限公司(“武鋼港務”)

Baowu Group’s subsidiary

Shanghai Huagongbao Digital Technology Co., Ltd. (“ HGB 
Digital “ (Huagongbao).”上海化工寶數位科技有限公司 
(“化工寶數位”)

Baowu Group’s subsidiary

Baowu Equipment Intelligent Technology Co., Ltd. (“Baowu 
Equipment”) 寶武裝備智慧科技有限公司(“寶武裝備”)

Baowu Group’s subsidiary

IX. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS 
(CONTINUED)

4. Other related parties (Continued)
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Name

Relationship between 
the Company and the 
other related parties

Shanghai Meishan Iron & Steel Co., Ltd. (“Meishan Iron & 
Steel”) 上海梅山鋼鐵股份有限公司(“梅鋼股份”)

Baowu Group’s subsidiary

Shanghai Baosight Software Co.,Ltd. (“Baosight Software”)  
上海寶信軟體股份有限公司(“寶信軟體”)

Baowu Group’s subsidiary

Shanghai Meishan Industrial Civil Engineering Design 
Research Institute Co., Ltd. (“Meishan Research Institute”) 
上海梅山工業民用工程設計研究院有限公司(“梅山研究院”)

Baowu Group’s subsidiary

Shanghai Baosteel Shipping Co., Ltd. (“Baosteel Shipping”) 
上海寶鋼航運有限公司(“寶鋼航運”)

Baowu Group’s subsidiary

Shanghai Baosteel Energy Service Co., Ltd (“Baosteel Energy 
Service”) 上海寶鋼節能環保科技有限公司(“寶鋼節能環保”)

Baowu Group’s subsidiary

Baowu Environmental Technology Wuhan Metal Resources 
Co., Ltd. (“Environmental Technology Wuhan”)  
寶武環科武漢金屬資源有限責任公司(“環科武漢”)

Baowu Group’s subsidiary

Shanghai Baoding Energy Co., Ltd. (“Baoding Energy”)  
上海寶頂能源有限公司(“寶頂能源”)

Baowu Group’s subsidiary

Baosteel Resources 寶鋼資源 Baowu Group’s subsidiary
Shanghai Ouyeel Logistics Co., Ltd. (Ouyeel Logistics)  
上海歐冶物流股份有限公司(“歐冶物流”)

Baowu Group’s subsidiary

Shanghai Ouyeel Purchasing Information Technology Co., 
Ltd. (“Ouyeel Purchasing”) 上海歐冶採購資訊科技 
有限責任公司(“歐冶採購”)

Baowu Group’s subsidiary

Wuhan Huafeng Sensing Technology Co.,Ltd.(“Huafeng 
Sensing”) 武漢華楓傳感技術股份有限公司(“華楓傳感”)

Baowu Group’s subsidiary

Ouyeel International 歐冶國際電商有限公司(“歐冶國際”) Baowu Group’s subsidiary
Baoshan Iron and Steel Co.,Ltd. (“Baosteel Co., Ltd.”)  
寶山鋼鐵股份有限公司(“寶鋼股份”)

Baowu Group’s subsidiary

Wuhan Iron and Steel Company Limited (Wuhan Iron & Steel) 
武漢鋼鐵有限公司(“武漢鋼鐵”)

Baowu Group’s subsidiary

IX. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS 
(CONTINUED)

4. Other related parties (Continued)
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Relationship between 
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Ouyeel Blockchain Finance and Metal Recycling Resources 
Co., Ltd. (Ouyeel Blockchain Finance)  
歐冶鏈金再生資源有限公司(“歐冶鏈金”)

Baowu Group’s subsidiary

Guangdong Guangwu Zhongnan Building Materials Group 
Co., Ltd (“ Zhongnan Building Materials “)  
廣東廣物中南建材集團有限公司(“中南建材”)

Baowu Group’s subsidiary

Ouyeel Industrial Products Co., Ltd. (“ Ouyeel Industry “) 
歐冶工業品股份有限公司(“歐冶工業”)

Baowu Group’s subsidiary

Baosteel Resources (International) Co., Ltd. (“Baosteel 
International”)寶鋼資源（國際）有限公司(“寶鋼國際”)

Baowu Group’s subsidiary

Shanghai Steel Trading Center Co., Ltd. (“ Shanghai Steel “)
上海鋼鐵交易中心有限公司(“上海鋼鐵”)

Baowu Group’s subsidiary

Wisco Resources Group Ezhou Pellets Co., Ltd. (Ezhou 
Pellets)武鋼資源集團鄂州球團有限公司(“鄂州球團”)

Baowu Group’s subsidiary

Shanghai Ouyeel Supply Chain Co., Ltd (“ Shanghai Ouyeel “)
上海歐冶供應鏈有限公司(“上海歐冶”)

Baowu Group’s subsidiary

Baowu Water Technology Limited (“ Baowu Water “) 
寶武水務科技有限公司(“寶武水務”)

Baowu Group’s subsidiary

Ma Steel International Trade & Economic 
Corporation(“MaSteel International”) 
馬鋼國際經濟貿易有限公司(“馬鋼國際”)

Baowu Group’s subsidiary

Wuhan Iron and Steel Green City Technology Development 
Co., Ltd.(“Wugang Technology”) 
武漢武鋼綠色城市技術發展有限公司(“武鋼技術”)

Baowu Group’s subsidiary

Shanghai Fengbao Comprehensive Management Co., Ltd.
(“Shanghai Fengbao”)上海豐寶綜合經營有限公司 
(“上海豐寶”)

Baowu Group’s subsidiary

Baowu Heavy Industry Co., Ltd.(“Baowu Heavy Industry”) 
寶武重工有限公司(“寶武重工”)

Baowu Group’s subsidiary

IX. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS 
(CONTINUED)

4. Other related parties (Continued)
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Name

Relationship between 
the Company and the 
other related parties

Nanjing Baodi Meishan Industrial City Development Co., Ltd. 
(“Meishan Development”)南京寶地梅山產城發展有限公司 
(“梅山發展”)

Baowu Group’s subsidiary

Taiyuan Iron and Steel (Group) Co., Ltd. (“Taiyuan Steel”) 
太原鋼鐵（集團）有限公司(“太原鋼鐵”)

Baowu Group’s subsidiary

Taiyuan Iron and Steel (Group) International Economic and 
Trade Co., Ltd. (“Taiyuan International”)太原鋼鐵（集團）國際
經濟貿易有限公司(“太原國際”)

Baowu Group’s subsidiary

Shanghai Baosteel Construction Engineering Design Co., Ltd. 
(“Baosteel Design”)上海寶鋼建築工程設計有限公司 
(“寶鋼設計”)

Baowu Group’s subsidiary

Baosteel Chemical (Zhangjiagang Free Trade Zone) 
International Trade Co., Ltd. (“Baosteel Chemical”) 
寶鋼化工（張家港保稅區）國際貿易有限公司(“寶鋼化工”)

Baowu Group’s subsidiary

Baowu Raw Material寶武原料 Baowu Group’s subsidiary
Baowu Environmental Resource寶環資源 Baowu Group’s subsidiary
Baosteel Metal Co., Ltd.(“Baosteel Metal”) 
寶鋼金屬有限公司(“寶鋼金屬”)

Baowu Group’s subsidiary

Wuhan Iron and Steel Jiangbei Group Cold Formed Steel Co., 
Ltd. (“Wuhan Jiangbei”)武漢鋼鐵江北集團冷彎型鋼有限公司
(“武鋼江北”)

Baowu Group’s subsidiary

Xingang International Trade Co., Ltd. (“Xingang International”)
新鋼國際貿易有限公司(“新鋼國際”)

Baowu Group’s subsidiary

Baowu Group Zhongnan Iron and Steel Co., Ltd.  
(“Zhongnan Steel”)寶武集團中南鋼鐵有限公司(“中南鋼鐵”)

Baowu Group’s subsidiary

Guangdong Building Materials Co., Ltd. (“Guangdong 
Building Materials”)廣東省建材有限公司(“廣東建材”)

Baowu Group’s subsidiary

IX. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS 
(CONTINUED)

4. Other related parties (Continued)
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Relationship between 
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Guangdong Shaogang Engineering Technology Co., Ltd. 
(“Shaogang Engineering”)廣東韶鋼工程技術有限公司 
(“韶鋼工程”)

Baowu Group’s subsidiary

Baocheng Carbon寶丞炭材 Baowu Group’s subsidiary
Baowu Resource寶武資源 Baowu Group’s subsidiary
Warburg Trust Company Limited (“ Warburg Trust “) 
華寶信託有限責任公司(“華寶信託”)

Baowu Group’s subsidiary

Shanghai Baoneng Information Technology Co., Ltd. 
(“Baoneng Information”)上海寶能資訊科技有限公司 
(“寶能信科”)

Baowu Group’s Associate

Taicang Wugang Terminal Co., Ltd.(“Taicang Wugang”) 
太倉武港碼頭有限公司(“太倉武港”)

Baowu Group’s Associate

Jiangsu Gongchang Roll Co., Ltd. (“ Gongchang Roll “) 
江蘇共昌軋輥股份有限公司(“共昌軋輥”)

Baowu Group’s Associate

Masteel Gongchang United Roll Co., Ltd. (“ Gongchang 
United “)馬鋼共昌聯合軋輥有限公司(“共昌聯合”)

Baowu Group’s Associate

Sichuan Daxing Baohua Chemical Co., Ltd.(“Daxing Baohua”)
四川達興寶化化工有限公司(“達興寶化”)

Baowu Group’s Associate

China Pacific Property Insurance Co., Ltd. (“Pacific 
Insurance”)中國太平洋財產保險股份有限公司(“太平洋財產”)

Baowu Group’s Associate

China PingMei god horse energy chemical group Co.,Ltd. 
(“PingMei Energy”)中國平煤神馬能源化工集團有限責任公司
(“平煤能源”)

Baowu Group’s Associate

Honghe Iron and Steel Co., Ltd. (“Honghe Steel”) 
紅河鋼鐵有限公司(“紅河鋼鐵”)

Baowu Group’s Associate

MCC South Engineering Technology Co., Ltd. (“MCC South”)
中冶南方工程技術有限公司(“中冶南方”)

Baowu Group’s Associate

Siyuanhe Equity Investment Management Co., Ltd. (“Siyuanhe 
Investment”)四源合股權投資管理有限公司(“四源合投資”)

Baowu Group’s Associate

IX. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS 
(CONTINUED)

4. Other related parties (Continued)
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IX. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS 
(CONTINUED)

5. Major transactions between the Group and its related parties

(1) Related party transactions of received services

Related parties
Related party 
transactions 2022 2021

Baowu Equipment Receiving of 
services (Note1)

90,375,875.06 78,173,492.35

Baosteel Development Receiving of 
services (Note1)

82,041,787.25 23,035,104.37

Taicang Wugang Receiving of 
services (Note1)

61,492,150.97 –

Baosteel Shipping Receiving of 
services (Note1)

42,149,048.12 –

Baoding Energy Receiving of 
services (Note1)

41,553,954.13 –

Ouyeel Logistics Receiving of 
services (Note1)

28,163,999.65 3,441,160.80

Baowu Water Receiving of 
services (Note1)

27,528,625.84 –

Baosteel Engineering Receiving of 
services (Note1)

27,171,504.25 195,109,423.48

Baowu Heavy Industry Receiving of 
services (Note1)

26,749,954.92 –

Baosight Software Receiving of 
services (Note1)

26,229,434.15 113,620,036.39

Ouyeel Industry Receiving of 
services (Note1)

19,060,049.67 822,274,216.26

Wugang Wharf Receiving of 
services (Note1)

16,106,893.36 –
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Related parties
Related party 
transactions 2022 2021

Baodi Nanhua Receiving of 
services (Note1)

15,182,873.79 30,447,718.68

Baosteel Xinyue Receiving of 
services (Note1)

10,000,000.00 7,293,790.00

Baowu Raw Material Receiving of 
services (Note1)

4,160,000.00 –

Ouyeel Cloud Receiving of 
services (Note1)

3,811,320.76 –

Wisco Logistics Receiving of 
services (Note1)

3,479,177.32 19,795,375.95

Baowu Environmental Resource Receiving of 
services (Note1)

788,881.26 –

Baosteel Co., Ltd. Receiving of 
services (Note1)

360,000.00 12,698,986.00

Baosteel Engineering Consulting Receiving of 
services (Note1)

355,851.00 –

Huafeng Sensing Receiving of 
services (Note1)

269,400.00 73,152.00

Baowu Group Receiving of 
services (Note1)

198,638.68 5,433.96

Steel Home Information Receiving of 
services (Note1)

150,943.39 189,622.64

Pacific Insurance Receiving of 
services (Note1)

123,047.47 –

    

IX. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS 
(CONTINUED)

5. Major transactions between the Group and its related parties (Continued)

(1) Related party transactions of received services (Continued)
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Related parties
Related party 
transactions 2022 2021

Group Co., Ltd. Receiving of 
services (Note1)

90,141.51 –

Shanghai Steel Receiving of 
services (Note1)

76,415.10 –

Baojing Information Receiving of 
services (Note1)

52,500.00 –

Meishan Development Receiving of 
services (Note1)

13,564.15 –

Ouyeel Purchasing Receiving of 
services (Note1)

– 4,696,972.29

Shaogang Engineering Receiving of 
services (Note1)

– 441,241.26

Baosteel Energy Service Receiving of 
services (Note1)

– 330,190.00

Baoneng Information Receiving of 
services (Note1)

– 29,800.00

Siyuanhe Investment Receiving of 
services (Note1)

– 17,408.88

    

Total 527,736,031.80 1,311,673,125.31    

The price of receiving related party services shall be determined by reference to the 
price of similar transactions between the related party and other third parties, or the 
cost plus profit premium, or the bidding price of the supplier.

IX. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS 
(CONTINUED)

5. Major transactions between the Group and its related parties (Continued)

(1) Related party transactions of received services (Continued)
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IX. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS 
(CONTINUED)

5 Major transactions between the Group and its related parties (continued)

(2) Related party transactions of purchased goods

Related parties
Related party 

transactions 2022 2021

Baosteel International Supply raw materials 
(Note 3)

4,371,413,678.63 1,475,693,921.93

Zhongnan Building Materials Supply billet (Note 3) 3,103,135,738.75 709,369,468.71
Ouyeel Industry Supply spare parts 

(Note 2)
1,286,374,449.60 –

Baosteel Resources Supply raw materials 
(Note 3)

1,180,772,914.00 1,792,393,852.54

Baoding Energy Supply raw materials 
(Note 3)

773,232,193.92 558,691,426.48

Baowu Raw Material Supply raw materials 
(Note 3)

729,165,076.60 2,477,322,087.54

Shanghai Ouyeel Supply raw materials 
(Note 3)

242,904,144.41 –

Ezhou Pellets Supply raw materials 
(Note 3)

231,971,751.44 466,454,123.47

Ouyeel Blockchain Finance Supply scrap steel 
(Note 3)

95,284,221.87 240,088,254.97

Baosteel Co., Ltd. Supply raw materials 
(Note 3)

73,609,209.87 601,631,849.13
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Related parties
Related party 

transactions 2022 2021

Baowu Equipment Supply spare parts and 
equipment (Note 2)

39,117,111.06 48,356,390.14

MaSteel International Supply raw materials 
(Note 3)

33,362,123.88 –

Echeng Iron and Steel Supply raw materials 
(Note 3)

20,897,758.00 55,648,557.88

Baosight Software Supply spare parts and 
equipment (Note 2)

8,404,231.09 3,130,373.16

PingMei Energy Supply raw materials 
(Note 3)

1,595,577.93 –

Shaogang Engineering Supply spare parts 
(Note 2)

1,202,790.35 –

Shanghai Fengbao Supply spare parts 
(Note 2)

416,000.00 –

Environmental Technology Wuhan Supply billet (Note 3) – 513,447.26
hanghai Steel Supply billet (Note 3) – 626,220,844.58
Baosteel Shipping Supply raw materials 

(Note 3)
– 61,164,685.06

Taicang Wugang Supply raw materials 
(Note 3)

– 51,214,285.84

Wugang Wharf Supply raw materials 
(Note 3)

– 14,685,715.75

Huafeng Sensing Supply spare parts and 
equipment (Note 2)

– 8,544,038.64

    

IX. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS 
(CONTINUED)

5. Major transactions between the Group and its related parties (Continued)

(2) Related party transactions of purchased goods (Continued)
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IX. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS 
(CONTINUED)

5 Major transactions between the Group and its related parties (Continued)

(3) Related party transactions of purchased fixed assets and construction services

Related parties
Related party 
transactions 2022 2021

Baosteel Engineering
Construction 
services (Note 1) 652,501,845.35 474,762,306.11

Baowu Water
Construction 
services 218,793,079.60 223,016,130.06

Baosight Software (Note 1) 140,560,712.55 –

Meishan Research Institute
Construction 
services 27,172,390.85 12,719,114.45

Kunlun Information (Note 1) 15,804,929.36 1,715,580.00

Baosteel Engineering Consulting
Construction 
services 6,946,770.97 427,740.00

Baowu Equipment (Note 1) 1,001,846.24 2,255,468.66

Ouyeel Purchasing
Construction 
services 108,000.00 72,000.00

Baoneng Information (Note 1) 89,400.00 –

Wugang Technology
Construction 
services 15,419.98 –

Changshou Iron & Steel
Purchase pre-
ironmaking assets – 3,509,511,617.16

Baosteel Casting
Construction 
services (Note 1) – 498,900.00    

Total 1,062,994,394.90 4,224,978,856.44    
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IX. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS 
(CONTINUED)

5 Major transactions between the Group and its related parties (Continued)

(3) Related party transactions of purchased fixed assets and construction services 
(Continued)

Note 1:   The approved transaction caps of Baowu Group and its subsidiaries and affiliates 
in providing services to the Group in 2022 is RMB4,753,000,000.00, and the total 
transaction of Baowu Group and its subsidiaries and affiliates in providing services to 
the Group this year is RMB1,590,730,426.70. The amount of transactions in 2022 does 
not exceed the approved caps of transactions;

Note 2:   The transaction caps approved for Baowu Group and its subsidiaries and affiliates to 
supply production materials (chemical materials, equipment and spare parts, water, 
electricity and natural gas, etc.) to the Group in 2022 is RMB2,574,000,000.00. The 
total transaction of production materials provided by Baowu Group, its subsidiaries and 
affiliated enterprises to the Group this year is RMB1,335,514,582.10, and the transaction 
in 2022 does not exceed the approved transaction caps.

Note 3:   The transaction caps approved for Baowu Group and its subsidiaries and affiliates to 
supply raw materials (iron ore, scrap steel, resistant materials, auxiliary materials, billets 
and coal, etc.) to the Group in 2022 is RMB40,446,000,000.00. The total transaction 
of raw materials supplied to the Group by Baowu Group, its subsidiaries and affiliated 
enterprises is RMB10,857,344,389.30 this year, and the transaction in 2022 does not 
exceed the approved transaction caps.

The price of fixed assets and construction services purchased from related parties shall 
be negotiated by both parties with reference to the market price or the bidding price of 
the supplier.
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IX. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS 
(CONTINUED)

5 Major transactions between the Group and its related parties (Continued)

(4) Sale of goods and rendering of services to related parties

Related parties
Related party 
transactions 2022 2021

Zhongnan Building Materials Production materials 2,467,891,270.08 2,008,384,387.14
Ouyeel Material Production materials 2,147,887,352.88 2,614,513,714.43
Shanghai Ouyeel Production materials 892,829,238.23 410,282,303.64
Guangdong Zhongnan Technical services 799,845,691.09 985,539,964.32
Guangdong Building Materials Production materials 720,569,629.58 –
Baocheng Carbon Production 

materials&Energy& 
Technical services

536,098,700.01 346,028,971.97

Xingang International Production materials 349,348,568.69 –
Baowu Environmental Resource Production 

materials&Energy
193,618,036.94 –

Baosteel Co., Ltd. Production materials 78,733,207.09 –
Honghe Steel Technical services 75,228,972.71 –
Wuhan Jiangbei Production materials 35,121,133.10 –
Meishan Iron & Steel Production materials 21,710,407.09 –
Echeng Iron and Steel Production materials & 

Technical services
18,017,637.61 204,811,981.01

Baosteel Metal Production materials 16,599,334.85 –
Shanghai Steel Production materials 15,827,721.58 –
Baowu Water Production materials & 

Technical services
9,188,497.50 54,468.17

Baosteel Chemical Production materials 9,089,928.78 –
Ouyeel Industry Production materials & 

Technical services
8,887,700.42 24,275.49
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Related parties
Related party 
transactions 2022 2021

Baowu Heavy Industry Production materials & 
Technical services

3,206,412.31 –

Baowu Resource Energy 2,550,219.42 –
Baosteel Huazhong Production materials 1,523,359.69 200,012,609.40
Baosteel Engineering Energy 199,217.13 53,876.81
Baowu Equipment Energy 110,810.28 8,773.62

Baosteel Development Energy 6,477.30 5,831.78
Meishan Research Institute Energy 4,460.73 –
Baodi Nanhua Energy 4,009.85 9,826.22
Baosight Software Energy 949.00 –
Ouyeel Cloud Production materials – 769,372,898.45
Desheng Vanadium & Titanium Production materials & 

Technical services
– 341,940,237.41

Kunming Iron & Steel Technical services – 224,771,543.25
Baosteel Resources Production materials – 125,326,448.52
Ouyeel Pingxiang Production materials – 98,860,738.67
Xiangyang Equipment Technical services – 75,342,035.32
Baosteel Huangshi Production materials – 51,850,980.89
Xinjiang Bayi Technical services – 15,927,765.11
Baosteel West Production materials – 10,890,697.99
HGB Digital Production materials – 6,289,982.25
Environmental Technology Wuhan Production materials – 2,849,384.60    

Total 8,404,098,943.94 8,493,153,696.46    

The price of goods sold to related parties shall be determined according to the price 
charged by the Company to other third parties or the price stipulated by relevant 
departments of Chongqing government.

IX. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS 
(CONTINUED)

5 Major transactions between the Group and its related parties (Continued)

(4) Sale of goods and rendering of services to related parties (Continued)
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IX. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS 
(CONTINUED)

5 Major transactions between the Group and its related parties (Continued)

(5) Leases

As a lessee Related parties
Related party 
transactions 2022 2021

Changshou Iron & Steel Machineries and 
other equipment 
(Note)

– 117,057,522.12

    

Note:  On 16 November 2020, the Company entered into an Asset Leasing Contract with 
Changshou Iron & Steel to lease the aforesaid pre-ironmaking assets, agreeing to renew 
the lease of machineries and other equipment of Changshou Iron and Steel in 2021 and 
subsequently purchase such assets with reference to the fair value assessed by the 
appraisal institution, with a monthly rent of RMB17,875,000. In August 2021, the Company 
and Changshou Iron and Steel entered into an Asset Purchase Agreement and completed 
the asset delivery. The acquisition price of asset agreed in the agreement was RMB3.551 
billion.
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IX. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS 
(CONTINUED)

5. Major transactions between the Group and its related parties (Continued)

(7) Interest income received from a related party

Related parties 2022 2021

Baowu Finance 4,112,791.53 348,031.01   

(8) Interest fee paid to related parties

Related parties 2022 2021

Changshou Iron & Steel – 15,674,032.53
Baowu Finance 1,472,126.33 5,323,394.09   

Total 1,472,126.33 20,997,426.62   

(9) Letter of credit obtained from a related party

2022 2021

Related 
parties Amount Balance Charges Amount Balance Charges

Baowu 
Finance 47,561,878.19 – 23,518.34 491,817,398.44 201,196,629.31 367,934.24

Related parties



For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Unit: RMB)

351Chongqing Iron & Steel Company Limited 

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

IX. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS 
(CONTINUED)

5. Major transactions between the Group and its related parties (Continued)

(11) Bill custody/collection by related party

2022 2021

Related parties Amount Balance Charges Amount Balance Charges

Baowu Finance 11,338,971,221.88 673,819,951.27 – 2,246,213,470.69 921,893,030.47 –       

In 2022 and 2021, Baowu Finance has not charged the Group for the bill custody/
collection service.

(12) Other related transactions

Pursuant to the Financial Service Agreement signed by the Company and Baowu 
Finance, the maximum daily credit limit provided to the Company by Baowu Finance 
would be RMB2 billion, and the maximum daily balance limit for deposit cash of 
deposit service provided to the Company by Baowu Finance would be RMB2 billion. 
The maximum daily amount that Baowu Finance provided comprehensive credit 
service and deposit service to the Group during the year ended 31 December 
2022 is RMB311,566,248.12 and RMB1,293,686,620.61 respect ively (In 2021: 
RMB178,790,137.50 and RMB520,504,432.97 respectively).

The transactions above with Baowu Group and its associates and Desheng Vanadium 
& Titanium constitute the transactions or continued transactions with related parties 
according to the Listing rules Chapter 14A of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. The 
Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure requirements under Chapter 
14A of the Listing Rules.

(13) Remuneration of key management personnel

Related parties 2022 2021

Compensation for key management personnel 10,824,568.67 13,739,348.46   
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IX. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS 
(CONTINUED)

5. Major transactions between the Group and its related parties (Continued)

(13) Remuneration of key management personnel (Continued)

2022

Salaries, 
bonuses, 

allowances 
and subsidies

Pension 
insurance 

premium Housing funds

Other social 
insurance 

premium Annuity Total

Director-executive 
director：

Zhang Wenxue (note 4) 1,374,707.10 57,123.94 42,842.00 39,845.58 27,053.84 1,541,572.46
Song De An – – – – – –
Lai Xiaomin – – – – – –
Xie Zhixiong (note 4) (note 5) 1,364,051.00 42,086.70 50,298.00 28,031.39 32,949.12 1,517,416.21
Zou An (note 6) 1,032,764.00 62,594.04 46,944.00 43,522.92 29,513.28 1,215,338.24
Zhou Ping – – – – – –
Meng Wenwang (note 2) 

(note 4) (note 5) 1,051,926.00 62,594.40 46,944.00 44,036.40 68,846.04 1,274,346.84
Director-non-executive 

director:
Sheng Xuejun 180,000.00 – – – – 180,000.00
Zhang Jingruo 180,000.00 – – – – 180,000.00
Guo Jiebin 180,000.00 – – – – 180,000.00
Supervisors
Wu Xiaoping – – – – – –
Li Huaidong – – – – – –
Zhu Xingan – – – – – –
Zhou Yaping 615,030.94 37,985.28 36,960.00 28,726.32 18,866.40 737,568.94
Zhang Liquan (Note 3) 803,865.81 25,323.52 24,124.00 18,119.76 19,675.52 891,108.61
Yao Xiaohu (Note 1) (Note 3) 495,960.00 23,189.28 21,947.00 17,536.77 12,297.20 570,930.25
Senior Management:
Yao Xiaohu (Note 1) (Note 3) – – – – – –
Xie Chao 1,193,664.00 37,985.28 36,960.00 28,726.32 29,513.28 1,326,848.88
Zhang Yongzhong 1,026,864.00 62,594.04 46,944.00 43,522.92 29,513.28 1,209,438.24       

Total 9,498,832.85 411,476.48 353,963.00 292,068.38 268,227.96 10,824,568.67              
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IX. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS 
(CONTINUED)

5. Major transactions between the Group and its related parties (Continued)

(13) Remuneration of key management personnel (Continued)

Directors Mr. Song Dean, Mr. Lai Xiaomin and Mr. Zhou Ping, Supervisor Mr. Wu 
Xiaoping, Mr. Li Huaidong and Mr. Zhu Xingan did not receive remuneration from the 
Company throughout this year.

The five highest paid employees during the year included four directors and one Senior 
Management (2021: three directors and two Senior Management), details of whose 
remuneration are set out above.

Note 1:  On February 17, 2022, Mr. Yao Xiaohu resigned as Senior Vice President from the Board 
of Directors of the Company.

Note 2:  On February 18, 2022, the Board of Directors appointed Mr. Meng Wenwang as the 
ninth Senior Vice President of the Company. on December 15, 2022, the shareholders’ 
meeting elected Mr. Meng Wenwang as a director of the ninth session of the Board of 
Directors.

Note 3:  On August 5, 2022, Mr. Zhang Liquan resigned from the posit ion of employee 
representative supervisor; the staff representative meeting elected Mr. Yao Xiaohu as an 
employee representative supervisor of the ninth session of the Supervisory Committee 
of the Company for the same term as the ninth session of the Supervisory Committee of 
the Company.

Note 4:  On November 16, 2022, Mr. Zhang Wenwen resigned as chairman and director, Mr. 
Xie Zhixiong resigned as president and Mr. Meng Wenwang resigned as senior vice 
president.

Note 5:  On November 21, 2022, the board of directors elected Mr. Xie Zhixiong as the chairman 
of the ninth session of the board of directors of the Company for the same term as the 
ninth session of the supervisory committee of the Company, and appointed Mr. Meng 
Wenwang as the president of the Company and as a director of the ninth session of the 
board of directors by-election; on December 15, 2022, Mr. Meng Wenwang was elected 
as a director of the ninth session of the board of directors for the same term as the ninth 
session of the supervisory committee of the Company.

Note 6:  On March 18, 2022, the board of directors appointed Mr. Zou An as the General 
Counsel of the Company.
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IX. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS 
(CONTINUED)

5. Major transactions between the Group and its related parties (Continued)

(13) Remuneration of key management personnel (Continued)

2021

Salaries,bonuses, 
allowances and 

subsidies
Pension insurance 

premium Housing funds

Other social 
insurance 
premium Total

Director-executive di-rector：
Zhang Wenxue 2,063,541.70 67,127.71 42,504.00 39,968.59 2,213,142.00
Song De An – – – – –
Lai Xiaomin – – – – –
Xie Zhixiong 425,887.00 39,163.68 21,429.00 16,759.17 503,238.85
Zou An 1,840,024.00 56,669.76 42,504.00 39,867.60 1,979,065.36
Zhou Ping – – – – –
Liu Jianrong 1,022,770.00 31,858.56 23,894.00 22,412.65 1,100,935.21
Tu Deling 1,130,740.00 22,342.40 22,048.00 16,896.56 1,192,026.96
Director-non-executive director:
Sheng Xuejun 60,000.00 – – – 60,000.00
Zhang Jingruo 60,000.00 – – – 60,000.00
Guo Jiebin 60,000.00 – – – 60,000.00
Xin Qingquan 120,000.00 – – – 120,000.00
Xu Yixiang 120,000.00 – – – 120,000.00
Wang Zhenhua 120,000.00 – – – 120,000.00
Supervisors
Wu Xiaoping – – – – –
Li Huaidong – – – – –
Zhu Xingan – – – – –
Zhou Yaping 471,658.87 35,510.40 33,852.00 26,854.92 567,876.19
Zhang Liquan 522,073.21 15,960.80 14,755.00 12,070.43 564,859.44
Wang Cunlin – – – – –
Xu Xudong – – – – –
Zhao Wei 309,133.31 19,549.60 18,999.00 14,784.49 362,466.40      
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Salaries,bonuses, 
allowances and 

subsidies
Pension insurance 

premium Housing funds

Other social 
insurance 
premium Total

Senior Management:
Yao Xiaohu 841,740.00 18,753.60 17,706.00 14,182.50 892,382.10
Xie Chao 1,820,824.00 35,510.40 33,852.00 26,854.92 1,917,041.32
Zhang Yongzhong 1,627,016.00 67,127.71 42,504.00 39,968.59 1,776,616.30
Meng Xiangyun 118,700.00 4,482.72 3,362.00 3,153.61 129,698.33      

Total 12,734,108.09 414,057.34 317,409.00 273,774.03 13,739,348.46      

6. Amounts due from/to related parties

(1) Accounts receivable

Related parties 2022 2021

Baowu Water 9,741,992.77 61,372.29
Baocheng Carbon 2,796,831.66 636,542.15
Ouyeel Industry 803,423.07 17,032.24
Baosteel Engineering 314,147.30 98,882.35
Baowu Equipment 5,926.61 –
Meishan Research Institute 5,030.77 –
Baodi Nanhua 4,634.37 10,884.52
Baosight Software 1,072.37 –
Echeng Iron and Steel – 1,556,456.37   

Total 13,673,058.92 2,381,169.92   

IX. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS 
(CONTINUED)

5. Major transactions between the Group and its related parties (Continued)

(13) Remuneration of key management personnel (Continued)

2021 (Continued)
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IX. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS 
(CONTINUED)

6. Amounts due from/to related parties (Continued)

(2) Receivables financing

Related parties 2022 2021

Baocheng Carbon 98,148,345.24 111,390,907.19
Baowu Environmental Resource 44,462,868.15 –
Wuhan Jiangbei 6,000,000.00 –
Ouyeel Industry 1,407,140.26 –
Zhongnan Building Materials 202,000.00 –
Guangdong Zhongnan – 363,348,287.52
Kunming Iron & Steel – 78,547,414.00

Desheng Vanadium & Titanium – 52,270,928.80
Echeng Iron and Steel – 28,922,267.95
Baosteel Huazhong – 1,868,836.20
Environmental Technology Wuhan – 500,000.00   

Total 150,220,353.65 636,848,641.66   

(3) Other receivables

Related parties 2022 2021

Baowu Heavy Industry 3,598,541.41 –
Baowu Water 2,573.47 –
Guangdong Zhongnan – 42,273,097.12
Baocheng Carbon – 4,396.32
Ouyeel Industry – 873.00   

Total 3,601,114.88 42,278,366.44   
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IX. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS 
(CONTINUED)

6. Amounts due from/to related parties (Continued)

(4) Prepayments

Related parties 2022 2021

Baowu Raw Material 88,527,178.68 2,001,141.22
Baosteel Resources 71,169,707.00 29,671,843.81
Baoding Energy 54,030,256.96 53,939,835.35
Baowu Heavy Industry 14,370,303.95 –
Baosight Software 77,256.64 –
Ouyeel Purchasing 51,194.00 –
Baosteel International – 63,719,117.16
Baosteel Engineering – 3,303,452.36   

Total 228,225,897.23 152,635,389.90   

(5) Contract liabilities

Related parties 2022 2021

Ouyeel Material 202,736,139.65 267,388,840.96
Zhongnan Building Materials 138,025,516.14 82,655,864.88
Baocheng Carbon 62,276,884.26 44,793,613.21
Baowu Environmental Resource 37,226,782.75 –
Xingang International 15,847,141.13 –
Shanghai Ouyeel 2,810,076.33 3,227,176.46
Wuhan Jiangbei 2,280,187.94 –
Shanghai Steel 1,195,650.51 –
Baosteel Chemical 763,965.13 –
Baosteel Huangshi 128,637.58 55,459.05
Echeng Iron and Steel 103,027.30 –
Guangdong Building Materials 93,125.13 –
Ouyeel Cloud 9,302.65 7,109.73
Baowu Equipment 5,223.12 –
Baosteel Development 62.09 –
Baosteel Huazhong – 2,161,710.98
Desheng Vanadium & Titanium – 1,798,130.00
HGB Digital – 51,760.00   

Total 463,501,721.71 402,139,665.27   
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IX. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS 
(CONTINUED)

6. Amounts due from/to related parties (Continued)

(6) Accounts payable

2022 2021

Ouyeel Industry 721,371,540.31 726,479,062.44
Baowu Equipment 60,364,971.24 94,539,715.15
Ouyeel Logistics 30,788,858.22 866,657.45
Baosteel Resources 22,221,500.18 42,232,919.98
Baosteel International 21,851,489.74 –
Baodi Nanhua 14,842,142.03 10,196,285.00
Baosight Software 13,557,936.40 34,043,760.81
MaSteel International 12,665,434.70 –
Baowu Water 12,415,007.51 150,081,423.62
Ezhou Pellets 12,402,048.00 –
Baosteel Development 7,624,932.57 83,085,511.47
Baowu Heavy Industry 6,449,605.44 –
Baosteel Engineering 5,100,000.00 303,942,409.48
Ouyeel Cloud 3,800,000.00 –
Baowu Environmental Resource 2,160,588.92 –
Taicang Wugang 1,893,132.57 4,849,919.21
Shaogang Engineering 1,348,745.24 218,988.61
Baosteel Co., Ltd. 1,320,290.99 1,540,202.19
MCC South 913,000.00 –
Baosteel Shipping 450,871.20 45,402.81
Wugang Wharf 440,959.56 2,172,413.93
Ouyeel Blockchain Finance 308,532.71 892,551.64
Shanghai Steel 81,000.00 –
Zhongnan Building Materials 0.01 –
Wisco Logistics – 623,300.15
Environmental Technology Wuhan – 580,195.40   

Total 954,372,587.54 1,456,390,719.34   
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IX. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS 
(CONTINUED)

6. Amounts due from/to related parties (Continued)

(7) Notes payable

Related parties 2022 2021

Baosteel Resources 95,455,360.00 –
Baosteel Shipping 13,029,757.47 15,569,131.61
Taicang Wugang 1,918,422.00 3,660,242.99
Baosteel Development 1,051,094.68 490,000.00
Baodi Nanhua 798,533.31 234,780.80
Meishan Research Institute 684,723.10 499,512.00
Wugang Wharf 461,076.08 677,107.98
Shaogang Engineering 378,797.01 279,614.01
Baosteel Engineering Consulting 377,202.06 57,013.43
Baoneng Information 268,000.00 –
Kunlun Information 246,240.00 258,673.44
Baojing Information 55,650.00 –
Baowu Water – 30,393,777.00
Baowu Equipment – 13,709,388.36
Ouyeel Purchasing – 5,240,522.05
Baosight Software – 799,939.70
Gongchang Roll – 265,273.00
Baosteel Engineering – 201,100.01
Baosteel Energy Service – 50,001.40
Huafeng Sensing – 77,541.12   

Total 114,724,855.71 72,463,618.90   
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IX. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS 
(CONTINUED)

6. Amounts due from/to related parties (Continued)

(8) Other payables

Related parties 2022 2021

Baosteel Engineering 546,352,788.51 –
Baosight Software 163,843,444.08 166,581.11
Baowu Water 113,266,269.40 2,845,818.07
Baowu Equipment 84,427,563.39 1,640,916.12
Meishan Research Institute 22,465,784.06 40,530.46
Kunlun Information 15,100,929.36 –
Baosteel Engineering Consulting 6,946,770.97 –
Baowu Environmental Resource 2,500,000.00 –
Huafeng Sensing 720,000.00 720,000.00
Baodi Nanhua 220,000.00 220,000.00
Wisco Logistics 200,000.00 –
Baosteel Development 20,000.00 –
Baosteel Design 20,000.00 –
Baosteel Energy Service 20,000.00 –
Changshou Iron & Steel – 1,339,361,617.18
Guangdong Zhongnan – 496,798.85
Baoneng Information – 268,000.00
Ouyeel Purchasing – 76,320.00   

Total 956,103,549.77 1,345,836,581.79   

(9) Long-term borrowings

2022 2021

Baowu Finance – 62,610,000.00   
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IX. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS 
(CONTINUED)

6. Amounts due from/to related parties (Continued)

(10) Trusteeship

2022

Trustor Trustee

The type of 
asset to delegate/
outsource Balance

Aggregate 
amount Income realized

The Company Warburg Trust Other assets 
custody

– 600,000,000.00 24,083,835.65

The Company Warburg Trust Annuity custody 75,521,080.36 75,521,080.36 –      

75,521,080.36 675,521,080.36 24,083,835.65      

2021

Trustor Trustee
The type of asset to 
delegate/outsource Balance Aggregate amount Income realized

The Company Warburg Trust Other assets 
custody

600,000,000.00 600,000,000.00 –

      

In 2022, the Group entrusted Warburg Trust, a subsidiary of Baowu Group, to manage 
the enterprise annuity, as detailed in Notes XII.3.

As of 31 December 2021, the current assets and current liabilities of the Group are 
unsecured, without interest, except for funds deposited to related party and loans from 
related parties, which shall be repaid when due.
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IX. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS 
(CONTINUED)

7. Capital centralized management

Baowu Finance is a national non-bank financial institution jointly owned by Baosteel Co., Ltd., 
Wisco Group Co. Ltd, Baosteel Development and other units, in order to strengthen the Baowu 
Group capital centralized management and increase the efficiency of funds, provide the 
members with internal settlement, savings and loans, short-term funds financing, investment 
and financing and other comprehensive financial services.

As of 31 December 2022, The Company has funds deposited to Baowu Finance amounting to 
RMB1,228,168,091.66 (In 2021: RMB19,442,871.11).

X. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

1. Significant Commitments

2022 2021

Contracted, but not provided for:

Capital commitments 3,645,180,582.75 4,558,663,610.83
Investment commitments 77,335,132.00 56,600,000.00   

3,722,515,714.75 4,615,263,610.83   

For lease commitments as lessee, refer to Note XII.2.
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X. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

2. Contingencies

On 26 February 2018, all the independent directors of the Company issued the Special 
Statement and Independent Opinion of Independent Directors on External Guarantees which 
stated the Company’s guarantees in 2017.

In 2012, each of China Development Bank and Agricultural Bank of China Taizhou Branch 
provided San Feng Jingjiang Port Logistics Company Limited (三峰靖江港務物流有限責任公
司, “San Feng Jingjiang”) with syndicated loans (loan contract no.: 3200577162012540569, 
“Syndicated Loan”), for which the Company assumed joint guarantee liability. After the 
Company underwent judicial reorganization, Qianxin International submitted an “Alternative 
Guarantee Commitment Letter” to the Company’s Reorganization Administrator on 13 
November 2017, confirming that it would communicate with China Development Bank 
and Agricultural Bank of China Taizhou Branch and go through relevant procedures and 
undertaking to pay off debt to assume its guarantee liability in case they claim compensation 
when the principal debtor San Feng Jingjiang defaults.

On 28 December 2017, Qianxin International, China Development Bank, Agricultural Bank of 
China Taizhou Branch and San Feng Jingjiang jointly signed the Change of RMB Syndicated 
Loan Contract (contract no.: 3200577162012540569004) which provided that Qianxin 
International, as the guarantor of Syndicated Loan, assumed joint guarantee liability. On 
the same day, Qianxin International, as the guarantor, entered into the Syndicated Loan 
Guarantee Contract with San Feng Jingjiang, China Development Bank and Agricultural Bank 
of China Taizhou Branch which served as a guarantee contract of Syndicated Loan (contract 
no. 3200577162012540569).

The company provides guarantee to its wholly owned subsidiary Chongqing Iron & Steel 
Energy for the financing from Chongqing BHD Financial Leasing Co., Ltd (重慶鈊渝金融租賃
股份有限公司)and Cinda Financial Leasing Co., Ltd (信達金融租賃有限公司) in the amount of 
RMB459 million for the period from 1 January 2021 to 27 September 2022. As of Dec 31, 2022, 
the balance of guarantee is 0.
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XI. EVENTS AFTER BALANCE SHEET DATE

The 20th session of the 9th Board of Directors and the 12th session of the 9th Board of Supervisors 
reviewed and approved the “Motion on Outbound Investment and Connected Transactions”. The 
company plans to join forces with Zhongnan Iron and Steel, Echeng Iron and Steel, Shanxi Taigang 
Stainless Steel, Baosteel Desheng Stainless Steel Co., LTD., Xinjiang Bayi, Xinjiang Yili Iron and 
Steel Co., LTD., and Xinjiang Eight Steel South Xinjiang Steel Baicheng., to increase capital and 
invest in Baowu Water Technology Limited (“ Baowu Water “). The company plans to make capital 
contribution in physical assets. On January 30, 2023, the parties to the transaction signed the 
Agreement on Capital Increase. The assessed value of the company’s physical assets on the capital 
increase date is RMB60.0364,500. The company completed the capital contribution in kind on 
January 31, 2023, and Baowu Water completed the commercial change on February 27, 2023.

XII. OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

1. Segment information

(1) Identification basis and accounting policies for reportable segments

The Group will determine different segments based on the internal organizational 
structure, management requirements and internal report system. The Group’s operation 
segments refer to those components meeting the following conditions at the same time:

1) The segment may generate revenue and incur expenses in daily activities;

2) Management of the Group can regularly evaluate the operating results of 
the segment to decide on the allocation of resources to it and evaluate its 
performance;

3) The segment’s financial position, operation result, cash flow and other accounting 
information can be obtained by analysis.

(2) Financial information of reportable segments

The Group’s revenue and profit are mainly comprised of steel manufacturing and 
domestic sales. The Group’s major assets are all in China. The management of the 
Company evaluates the Group’s operating results as a whole. Therefore, no segment 
report has been prepared in the current year.
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XII. OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS (CONTINUED)

1. Segment information (Continued)

(3) Information of significant customers

The Group generated revenue from one customer (2021: one) that reached or exceeded 
10% of the Group’s revenue, which accounting for 23% of the Group’s revenue (2021: 
20%).

Information of customer whose revenue in 2022 reaches or exceeds 10% of the Group’s 
revenue is as follows:

Name of Customer Revenue (Note)
Proportion of the 
Group’s revenue

(%)

Baowu Group and its subsidies 8,328,943,149.77 23   

Information of customer whose revenue in 2021 reaches or exceeds 10% of the Group’s 
revenue is as follows:

Name of Customer Revenue
Proportion of the 
Group’s revenue

(%)

Baowu Group and its subsidies 7,805,184,487.08 20   

Note:  The revenue above was the total amount generated from Baowu Group and its subsidies for 
the current year by the Group.

2. Lease

(1) As lessor

The revenue related to plants and buildings lease during the year ended in 31 
December 2022 was RMB300,268.39 (2021: RMB817,779.38), please refer to Note V.11. 
for more details.
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XII. OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS (CONTINUED)

2. Lease (Continued)

(1) As lessor (continued)

Operating leases

The profit or loss relating to operating leases is as follows:

2022 2021

Lease income 300,268.39 817,779.38   

The Company had total future minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable leases 
with its tenants falling due as follows:

2022 2021

Within 1 year 660,440.71 280,986.21

1 – 2 year (Within 2 year) 291,048.36 88,800.00
2 – 3 year (Within 3 year) 75,929.20 74,000.00
3 – 4 year (Within 4 year) – –   

1,027,418.27 443,786.21   

Please refer to Note V. 11 for more details about PPE leased out under operating lease.
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XII. OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS (CONTINUED)

2. Lease (Continued)

(2) As lessee

2022 2021

Lease liability interest expense 22,121,052.94 126,679,086.17
Short-term lease expenses through profit or loss 
subject to simplified treatment 2,878,302.09 3,496,762.35
Total cash outflows related to lease 165,000,000.00 265,238,860.44   

(3) Leaseback

2022 2021

Cash inflow from leaseback – 1,679,301,706.59

Cash outflow from leaseback 690,546,272.10 521,205,353.50   

(4) Other information

For right-of-use assets, please refer to Note V.13; For lease liabilities, please refer to 
Note V.29.

3. Annuity plan

The Group has implemented the annuity plan since January 1, 2022, and entrusted Huabao 
Trust, a subsidiary of Baowu Group, to manage the annuity. The scheme is a defined 
contribution scheme, and the Group and Scheme participants pay contributions according 
to the established contribution standards. According to the annuity plan., the Group’s 
contribution ratio is 4% of the employee’s individual contribution base.
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XIII. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS OF THE COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Trades receivable

The credit period of accounts receivable is generally one month to three months. Accounts 
receivable are non-interest-bearing.

An aging analysis of accounts receivable is as follows:

2022 2021

Within 1 year 177,584,415.92 67,590,560.45

1 to 2 years 1,994,697.02 1,716,354.47
2 to 3 years 1,715,749.84 119,920.26
Over 3 years 25,183.25 –   

181,320,046.03 69,426,835.18
Less: Impairment allowance 25,183.25 25,183.25   

181,294,862.78 69,401,651.93   

The ageing analysis was based on the month when incurred. The trade receivables recognized 
firstly will be firstly settled.

2022 2021

Book value Impairment allowance

carrying 

amount Book value Impairment allowance carrying amount

Amount Percentage Amount Percentage Amount Percentage Amount Percentage

（%） （%） （%） （%）

Provision for bad debts 

based on credit risk 

characteristics 181,320,046.03 100 25,183.25 – 181,294,862.78 69,426,835.18 100 25,183.25 – 69,401,651.93           

As at 31 December 2022 and at 31 December 2021, the Company have no individually trade 
receivables to separate provision.
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XIII. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS OF THE COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(CONTINUED)

1. Trades receivable (Continued)

The Company’s trade receivables with bad debt provision based on credit risk characteristics 
are as follows:

2022 2021

Estimated 
doubtful book 

value Lifetime ECLs
ECLs 

proportion

Estimated 
doubtful book 

value Lifetime ECLs
ECLs 

proportion

(%) (%) (%) (%)

Within 1 year 177,584,415.92 – – 67,590,560.45 – –
1 to 2 years 1,994,697.02 – – 1,716,354.47 – –
2 to 3 years 1,715,749.84 – – 119,920.26 21 25,183.25
Over 3 years 25,183.25 100 25,183.25 – – –       

181,320,046.03 25,183.25 69,426,835.18 25,183.25       

The movements of bad debt provision for accounts receivable are as follows:

Opening 
balance Provision

Recovery 
or reversal Write-off

Other 
additions

Closing 
balance

2022 25,183.25 – – – – 25,183.25       

2021 25,183.25 – – – – 25,183.25       

Steel products customers usually need advance payment, main customers are also provided 
with 30 days credit period. For other product customers, the contract price of the group is 
usually due within 30 days after the delivery of products, and the risk of expected credit loss 
of trade receivables is low.

As at 31 December 2022, the top five balances in respect of trade receivables aggregating 
RMB172,856,124.66 (As at 31 December 2021: RMB61,638,748.87), accounting for 95% (As 
at 31 December 2021: 88%) of the total of closing balance of trade receivables. The closing 
balance in respect of ECLs provision made for the top five balances amounted to 0 (As at 31 
December 2021: Nil).
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XIII. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS OF THE COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(CONTINUED)

2. Other receivables

2022 2021

Other receivables 133,345,845.02 180,813,449.46   

An aging analysis of other receivables is as follows:

2022 2021

Within 1 year 4,850,865.23 199,475,527.40

1 to 2 years 128,651,880.26 1,596,194.73
2 to 3 years 423,979.15 –
Over 3 years 2,137,630.50 2,286,928.28   

136,064,355.14 203,358,650.41
Less: Impairment allowance 2,718,510.12 22,545,200.95   

133,345,845.02 180,813,449.46   

The category of other receivables by nature is as follows:

2022 2021

Related party loan 123,000,000.00 129,723,419.65

Transactional intercourse 6,042,076.31 65,703,022.36
Guarantee deposits, staff advances, etc. 7,022,278.83 7,932,208.40   

136,064,355.14 203,358,650.41   
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XIII. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS OF THE COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(CONTINUED)

2. Other receivables (Continued)

Changes in impairment allowance recognized for the 12-month expected credit losses and 
lifetime expected credit losses on other receivables are as follows:

2022

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

12-month expected 

credit losses (a group of 

financial instruments with 

similar credit risk)

Lifetime expected credit 

losses (a group of 

financial instruments 

with similar credit risk)

Credit-impaired financial 

assets (Lifetime expected 

credit losses) (group of 

financial instruments with 

similar credit risk))

Credit-impaired financial 

assets (Lifetime expected 

credit losses) (a single 

financial instrument) Total

Book value

impairment 

allowance Book value

impairment 

allowance Book value

impairment 

allowance Book value

impairment 

allowance Book value

impairment 

allowance

31 December 2021 179,649,000.00 – 1,595,733.78 431,284.32 2,287,225.80 2,287,225.80 19,826,690.83 19,826,690.83 203,358,650.41 22,545,200.95

Additions 4,850,865.23 – – – – – – – 4,850,865.23 –

Derecognition (52,318,469.67) – – – – – (9,529,661.39) (9,529,661.39) (61,848,131.06) (9,529,661.39)

Write-off – – – – – – (10,297,029.44) (10,297,029.44) (10,297,029.44) (10,297,029.44)           

31 December 2022 132,181,395.56 – 1,595,733.78 431,284.32 2,287,225.80 2,287,225.80 – – 136,064,355.14 2,718,510.12           
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XIII. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS OF THE COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(CONTINUED)

2. Other receivables (Continued)

Changes in impairment allowance recognized for the 12-month expected credit losses and 
lifetime expected credit losses on other receivables are as follows:

2021

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

12-month expected credit 

losses (a group of 

financial instruments 

with similar credit risk)

Lifetime expected credit 

losses (a group of 

financial instruments 

with similar credit risk)

Credit-impaired financial 

assets (Lifetime expected 

credit losses) (group of 

financial instruments with 

similar credit risk))

Credit-impaired financial 

assets (Lifetime expected 

credit losses) (a single 

financial instrument) Total

Book value

impairment 

allowance Book value

impairment 

allowance Book value

impairment 

allowance Book value

impairment 

allowance Book value

impairment 

allowance

31 December 2020 15,365,321.43 – 2,247,363.94 431,284.32 3,077,225.80 3,077,225.80 – – 20,689,911.17 3,508,510.12

Additions 179,649,000.00 – – – – – 19,826,690.83 19,826,690.83 199,475,690.83 19,826,690.83

Derecognition (15,365,321.43) – (651,630.16) – (790,000.00) (790,000.00) – – (16,806,951.59) (790,000.00)           

31 December 2021 179,649,000.00 – 1,595,733.78 431,284.32 2,287,225.80 2,287,225.80 19,826,690.83 19,826,690.83 203,358,650.41 22,545,200.95           

The movements in impairment allowance for other receivables are as follows:

Opening 
balance Provision

Recovery 
or reversal Write-off

Closing 
balance

2022 22,545,200.95 – 9,529,661.39 10,297,029.44 2,718,510.12      

2021 3,508,510.12 19,826,690.83 790,000 – 22,545,200.95      
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XIII. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS OF THE COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(CONTINUED)

2. Other receivables (Continued)

The five entities with the largest balances of other receivables at 31 December 2022 are as 
follows:

Closing balance
Ratio in other 

receivables Nature Aging
Provision for 

bad debts

The first 123,206,294.13 91 Transactional 
intercourse of 
related party

1 to 2 ya((9 3.1301 0 1 k
0 137.34Aging)TjNAN60 1 Tf
-2028 Tc 0 Tw 10 -53.899 -4.421 first)Tjsecond0 1 Tf
-0.028 Tw 9.1 0 Td.4746Aging
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XIII. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS OF THE COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(CONTINUED)

2. Other receivables (Continued)

The five entities with the largest balances of other receivables at 31 December 2021 are as 
follows:

Closing balance
Ratio in other 

receivables Nature Aging
Provision for 

bad debts

The first 129,723,419.65 64 Transactional 
intercourse of 
related party

Within 1 year –

The second 42,273,097.12 21 Transactional 
intercourse

Within 1 year –

The third 19,826,690.83 10 Transactional 
intercourse

Within 1 year 19,826,690.83

The fourth 3,789,419.76 2 Guarantee deposits 0 to 3 years、
beyond 3 years

525,761.92

The fifth 2,977,788.64 1 Staff advances 0 to 3 years、
beyond 3 years

2,192,450.68

      

198,590,416.00 98 22,544,903.43      

3. Long-term equity investments

2022 2021

Outstanding 
balance

Provision for 
impairment Carrying amount

Outstanding 
balance

Provision for 
impairment Carrying amount

Investment to 
subsidiaries 992,287,994.68 – 992,287,994.68 992,287,994.68 – 992,287,994.68

Investments in 
associates 111,123,058.00 – 111,123,058.00 58,159,798.61 – 58,159,798.61       

1,103,411,052.68 – 1,103,411,052.68 1,050,447,793.29 – 1,050,447,793.29       
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XIII. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS OF THE COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(CONTINUED)

3. Long-term equity investments (Continued)

2022

Investee–
Opening 
balance

Movements during the year

Closing 
balance

Provision for 
impairment 

losses at 31 
December

  

Additions

Investment 
gains and 

losses 
recognized 

under the 
equity 

method–

Cash 
dividends 

declared by 
investee

Other 
decrease

Subsidiaries
Chongqing Iron & 

Steel Energy 837,609,884.19 – – – – 837,609,884.19 –
Xingang Changlong 154,678,110.49 – – – – 154,678,110.49 –        

992,287,994.68 – – – – 992,287,994.68 –        

Associates
Baocheng Carbon 

(Note 1) 14,039,012.26 – 4,925,313.06 (2,200,000.00) – 16,764,325.32 –
Baowu Raw Material 

(Note 1) 44,120,786.35 – 2,720,729.06 (2,323,084.25) – 44,518,431.16 –
Baowu Environmental 

Resource 
 (Note 1) – 14,700,000.00 803,020.25 – – 15,503,020.25 –

Baowu Jingcheng 
(Note 1) – 34,200,000.00 137,281.27 – – 34,337,281.27 –        

58,159,798.61 48,900,000.00 8,586,343.64 (4,523,084.25) – 111,123,058.00 –        
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XIII. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS OF THE COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(CONTINUED)

3. Long-term equity investments (Continued)

2021

Investee– Opening balance

Movements during the year

Closing balance

Provision for 
impairment 
losses at 31 
December

  

Additions

Investment 
gains and losses 

recognized 
under the equity 

method–
Reduce 

investment

Cash dividends 
declared by 

investee

Subsidiaries
Chongqing Iron & Steel 

Energy 837,609,884.19 – – – – 837,609,884.19 –
Xingang Changlong  

(Note 2) 28,257,560.41 126,420,550.08 – – – 154,678,110.49 –        

865,867,444.60 126,420,550.08 – – – 992,287,994.68 –        

Joint ventures
Chongqing Jianwei  

(Note 1) – – – – – – –
Associates
Baocheng Carbon (Note 1) 11,236,717.39 – 3,112,040.20 – (309,745.33) 14,039,012.26 –
Baowu Raw Material  

(Note 1) 40,000,000.00 – 5,020,786.35 – (900,000.00) 44,120,786.35 –
Baowu Environmental 

Resource (Note 1) – – – – – –
Baowu Jingcheng (Note 1) – – – – – –        

51,236,717.39 – 8,132,826.55 – (1,209,745.33) 58,159,798.61 –        

Note 1:  Please refer to Note V.9.

Note 2:   In 2021, the Company acquired 72% of the shares of Xingang Changlong from Chongqing 
Qianchengsheng Indust ry Development(重慶千誠實業發展有限公司)  and Minsheng 
Shipping(民生輪船股份有限公司), which are not related parties, with the cash amount at fair 
value determined to be RMB126,420,000. The purchase date is determined to be January 
15. Upon completion of the equity acquisition, the Company will hold 100% of the equity of 
Xingang Changlong, which will change Xingang Changlong from an associate company to a 
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
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4. Revenue

2022 2021

Revenue Cost Revenue Cost

Revenue from principal 
operations 36,289,120,723.90 36,369,484,928.41 37,463,440,579.15 33,818,620,025.02

Revenue from other 
operations 330,024,169.97 300,332,072.80 2,407,674,024.33 2,380,773,297.59     

36,619,144,893.87 36,669,817,001.21 39,871,114,603.48 36,199,393,322.61     

Details of revenue as follows:

2022 2021

Revenue from contracts with customers 36,617,338,846.75 39,870,296,824.10

Rental income 1,806,047.12 817,779.38   

36,619,144,893.87 39,871,114,603.48   

Disaggregation of Revenue from contracts with customers are as follows:

2022

Main product type

Sale of steel 
products and 

Billets Others Total

Hot rolled sheets 17,256,980,356.18 – 17,256,980,356.18
Plates 11,202,787,107.15 – 11,202,787,107.15
Bars 4,488,879,402.27 – 4,488,879,402.27
Wire rods 931,024,554.70 – 931,024,554.70
Billets 52,304,809.69 – 52,304,809.69
Others – 2,685,362,616.76 2,685,362,616.76    

33,931,976,229.99 2,685,362,616.76 36,617,338,846.75    



For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Unit: RMB)

378 2022 Annual Report

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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4. Revenue (Continued)

2021

Main product type

Sale of steel 
products and 

Billets Others Total

Hot rolled sheets 17,940,118,437.18 – 17,940,118,437.18
Plates 10,266,001,818.85 – 10,266,001,818.85
Bars 68,289,487.23 – 68,289,487.23
Billets 4,943,791,725.51 – 4,943,791,725.51
Others – 6,652,095,355.33 6,652,095,355.33    

33,218,201,468.77 6,652,095,355.33 39,870,296,824.10    

All the Group’s revenue was recognized at a certain point.

Revenue recognised that was included in contract liabilities at the beginning of the year:

2022 2021

Sales payment in advance 2,185,095,400.45 2,554,165,098.26   

5. Investment income

2022 2021

Investment income of held-for-trading financial assets 
during the holding period 24,083,835.65 203.69

Investment income from disposal of long-term equity 
investments– – 4,732,181.20

Investment income recognised through equity method 8,586,343.64 8,132,826.55   

32,670,179.29 12,865,211.44   
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XIV. OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

1. Breakdown of non-recurring profit or loss

2022

Gains/(loss) from disposal of non-current assets, including offset portion of 
impairment provision for such asset (6,802,536.85)

Government grants charged in profit or loss, except for those closely 
related to the ordinary operation and gained constantly at a fixed amount 
or quantity according to certain standard based on state policies 55,612,608.11

Capital occupied income from non-financial entities 5,112,276.20
Investment income received from disposal of held-for-trading financial 

assets– 24,083,835.65
Non-operating income and expenses other than the above items 658,427.65  

Subtotal 78,664,610.76  

Less: Impact of income tax 11,799,691.61  

Non-recurring profit or loss attributable to owners of the parent 66,864,919.15  
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

XIV. OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2. Return/(Loss) on net assets and earnings per share

2022

Weighted average 
of return on net 

assets (%) Earnings per share (RMB per share)

Basic Diluted

Net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the 
Company (4.66) (0.11) (0.11)

Net profit after deducting non-recurring profit or 
loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the 
Company (4.97) (0.12) (0.12)    

2021

Weighted average 
of return on net 

assets (%) Earnings per share (RMB per share)

Basic Diluted

Net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the 
Company 10.73 0.26 0.26

Net profit after deducting non-recurring profit or 
loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the 
Company 11.57 0.28 0.28    
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